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INTRODUCTION 

We must explain where the material contained in 
these volumes comes from. 

In 1978 the Friends of the Mattituck Free Library 
undertook to record an oral history of Mattituck. The 
project was carried on under the federal Comprehensive 
Employment and Training Act (CETA). It was begun by 
Richard Mack and then developed by John Traversa, and it 
was intended to bring up to date the 1906 History of 
Mattituck written by the Reverend Charley Craven, Pastor 
of the Mattituck Presbyterian Church. 

The work began with the recording of interviews with 
Mattituck citizens who recalled life in the early years 
of the century. Unexpectedly, work had to stop when the 
local CETA support was terminated. 

The Friends were unable to carry on the project, and 
it became apparent that our goal of a history could not 
be achieved in the foreseeable future. 

Into our files went the taped interviews, unedited 
and many incomplete, several hundred slides and a series 
of audio-visual tapes of groups and individuals. Some 
years later the Friends decided to make the contents of as 
many of the taped interviews as possible available as 
background material on the history of the community. 

The tapes contain the voices of Mattituck citizens 
speaking about a time and a place they knew intimately. 
The authors of the tapes found it pleasant "... to look 
back and think back over the years", and the Friends are 
offering these plain spoken, sometimes humorous or touch­
ing accounts of 'how it was in those days'. 

The material has been transcribed just as it was 
given to the interviewers with only repetitious and non-
pertinent matter omitted. We have added a few notes, 
some information from conversations with the authors. 
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and have included several written pieces. Where pictures 
were available we have reproduced them together with 
articles from the Suffolk Times, 

We express our gratitude to the authors whose inter­
views are recorded here as well as to those whose inter­
views we have not yet been able to transcribe. Our thanks 
to our volunteer proof readers, flancy Duryee and Mary 
Flanagan, and to those who graciously loaned or gave us 
old photographs. 

Many thanks go to our typists, Dorothea Delehanty, 
Kathleen Reeve and Rose Costello, who were dedicated in 
their efforts to transcribe the sometimes difficult re­
cordings. And heart-felt thanks to the Mattituck Free 
Library whose Directors and Staff have been consistently 
helpful and patient as we carried on our work in their 
midst. 

The Friends of the Mattityck Free Library 

Katherine Lascelle, Project Go-ordinator 

July 1986 
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MATTITUCK ORAL HISTORY 

Contents of Tape No. 31-RVirT & IR-1 Date; Sprin/^ 1978 
Oral authors: Ralpri W, Tuthill Interviewer; Richard Hack 

Irma Reeve 

Old Houses 

Contents 

Irma Reeve and Iklph Tuthill were driven around the village 
by the interviewer so they could point out old Houses v/hich 
they remembered from the turn of the Century. Two maps were 
prepared to show the location of houses. In the transcript 
the Editor has indicated the route they took. 

Map I — Sound Avenue and V/est Mattituck 

Map II — The village and Tuthilltown 

Material from a Mattituck Historical Society broctiure on the 
West Mattituck school house. 

Map of Mattituck 
Autiobiographi«gal Sketches 
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The following maps show a mixture of early and present 

day Mattituck, and are intended only to show the route 

taken during the interview. At the end of this trans­

cript is a copy of part of a map made in 1940 by 

H, Wickham, 
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Map I Sound Avenue and West Mattltuck 

This list includes some additional information 

which Irma gave in 19^4 and 1985 when we discussed the 

map. 

Site of West MattitucTc Schoolhouse 

"5^. lyle Hallock House 
Site of Downs house 

37. Hannah Hallock house 

38. Kirkup house 
39. Clifford Aldrich house, originally ow^jed by Mayo. 

40. In discussing the map with Irma, she said that 
there was another Aldrich house. This also 
had originally "been owned hy Mayos, She 
remembers going to school with Effie and Harry 
Aldrich who lived in one of these houses, 

41. Omar Hallock house 
42. Site of Irma's grandmother's house. A small tenant 

house still stands on the property (1985). 
Herbert Reeve wished to move the house, but 
because of the many brick fireplaces which might 
be dislodged and damaged, did not do so, 

43. Ellis Reeve house. He was a cousin. (1985, Jens 
Mattituck Greenhouses.) 

44. John Reeve house. (1985), Jens Mattituck Greenhouses) 

45. Irma Reeves old home (1985, Harbes) 

46. Howell house, renovated by Ku.iawski. 

47. Jackson house. 

48. V/est Mattituck 

4Q. Gilbert Aldrich house 

50. Cemetery 
51. School house, now a dwelling 

52. Franklinville 
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Tape 31-RWT: IR-1 
Map No. II. The village and Tuthilltown 

1 and 1-A These two houses "belonged to Luptons, (1978-1A,^ 
Hardy) 

2. Old school house;. Moved from 1-5 on Sound Avenue in 
West Mattituck. 

4. Museum 
5. Miska house 
6. Airport 
7. Wickham house 
R. Lupton house on New Suffolk Avenue 
9. Lupton house on the Bay. (1984. Norris) 
10. Wood Wickham house (1978 Brooks) ^ \ 
11. Cox Nursing Home; the George Reeve house (1978 Dove; 
12. Isiah Reeve House. On the National Registrv (1978 Pim) 
13. Conklin House. (1984 DeFriest Funeral Home) 
14. Glenwood Hotel 
15. Site of Mattituck Hotel 
16. Octagon House 
17. Dolly Bell's house 
18. Ralph Cox Ice Cream Parlor 
19. Site of old Post Office 
20. Approximate site of blacksmith shop 
21. Site of Station House 
22. Site of Duryee Hardware store m. 
23. Site of Tom Reeve's grocery store—Reeve and Tuthill 
24. McMillan house 
25. Mattituck Free Library, built on the site of the old 

school house. The field between the school and Reeve Ave. 
was a baseball diamond. 

26. Site of Gildersleeve store 
27. Approximate site of sheds and stables 
28! T.J. Maguire's carriage house 
30. Pike house. (1978 Barkers) 
31. Site of Bohacks. Thomas Reeve house stood-there berore 

Bohacte came, 
32. 1776 House, Joel Howell lived there, 
33. Presbyterian Church 
34. Penny's Lumber Co, 
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MATTTTTTCK ORAL HISTORY 

McLrd Mack 

Irma Reeve 

Old Ho-gses 

(Driving east on Route 25, leaving the village.) 

IR: This was a lupton house (II-IA). That nmst be fairly old* 

HOW wait, go Slow, right here. Here Is the old school house 

(II-2) that was moved from West Mattituck (1-29), This Is the 

Museum (II-4) that was built about 1846, the main part, and 

about ISOO for this east part. The school house was originally 

about two miles west of here IT. what was then called West 

Mattituck (1-3 IS the site of the school) 

I started school there about 1900 or so. It's been a 

tenent house, upstairs was In miserable condition. It never 

had a basement. It was moved down here. 

I: was that the one they want to start restoring, and having 

the old classes in? 

IR; Tes, The house on the comer, that's the Museum. 

RT: It was a farm. Where all these houses are. It was a farm. 

IR: This section Is all new, built up, you can see. The 

Musetmi ovms this lot. 

(Turning south on Cardinal Drive, going over to New Suffolk 

Avenue and turniTig right) 

RT: I wonder how old the Mlska house (II-5) way up to your 

right in the field up there. That's where Evelyn was bom, 

you know. Evelyn Kirlcup Reeve. 

» Mrs. Howard Hardy, the present owner, fas told us that the 
house next door, (II-D was also a Lupton house. 
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IR: Oh well, now I remember, they lived over.... 

RT; On Pike Street. 

I: There's Maratooka. Is there an airport (II-6) down here? 

IR; That "belongs to the Wiclcham family. 

RT: That's the Wickham house. (II-7) It was old, hut it's 

heen renovated so that it's nothing like it was, hut that was 

an old house. 

IR: And now, this one, whose would that have been then Ralph 

RT: This was on the north end of Cy Lupton's farm this house 

right there. (II-8) 

I: Do I see water down there? 

RT: Yup, the bay's right down there. There's a big house on 

the bay. (II-9) 

I; Was there a farm connected with that, or was that ,iust an 

estate? 

RT: More or less of an estate, quite a little land to it. 

IR: This is where the Brooks' live. (II-IO) But you don't 

know who was here? , 

RT; Well Wood Wickham was there originally. 

IR; Oh, another Wickham? 

Now this one, well that was Cox's Nursing Home. (11-11) 

RT; The man who used to direct Mattituck's choir lived there, 

George Reeve. He probably maybe built it, I don't know. 

I; Which choir? 

IR: Mattituck Presbyterian. This is the one that I wanted 

you particularly to see. (Isiah Reeve House - Ed.) (11-12) 

(Turning north on Reeve Avenue) 

IR; Now I see we are coming back on the Main Road. Go left. 
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Now we're on the Main Road. Now where the ConVlin house, 

(11-13) is that the funeral parlor? 

RT: Yes, the funeral narlor, right there. 

It was 0'Brians' Funeral Home,* before that I don't know. 

IR: Wait, this is an old hotel, this one here. 

The Glenwood Hotel. (11-14) There was another one 

across the street there. Where that little Peconic Glass 

thing is, was the Mattituck Hotel. (11-15) Oh this is one 

of the very important ones, (11-16) because it is octagonal. 

Who lived downstairs there? 

RT; Herbert Wells and Carrie Wells. 

IR: Well they lived upstairs didn't they? 

RT: ^olly Bell lived upstairs. 

IR: Oh, Oh. For how long? 

RT: Twenty five, thirty years. 

IR; Dolly Bell was an artist, 

I: I saw her paintings in the Library, and she went to 

Alaska, for awhile. 

IR; She was quite a person. 

I: Did she ever come back? 

IR: Oh yes, yes she died here, but not in this house, she had 

another house. (11-17) 

RT; She had a house of her own. 

I; I see, around when was that? (Her death. Ed.) 

RT: About two years ago probably. 

*or Brian Conklin's Funeral Home? Ed. 





Also called Mattituck Hotel 
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(Turning right on Love Lane) 

IR: Now go right here. This takes us through the old village 

part, Ralph Cpx's Ice Cream Parlor, (11—18) now wasn't the 

blacksmith right in there? 

RT: Yes. Right on the comer where the Bank is now was the 

Post Office. (11-19) The blacksmith shop (11-20) was right 

in there behind where the Love Lane Shop is now. Just back there. 

(Turning left on Pike Street) 

I: Now the Station House (11-21) itself, 

IR: It's gone, the Railroad Station, I almost wept the day I 

came along here and it was just going down, 

I: They took it down for a parking lot or something? 

RT: More or less. The passengers got so few. We can go right 

and come back in the village again. 

(Turning right on Westphalia Road) 

I: Was this a potato house? 

RT: No that was a hardware store (11-22) originally. It 

wasn't built until 1905 or 06. 

I: Do you know who owned it? 

RT: W. D. Duryee. 

IR; D-u-r-y-e-e. And let's see, Tom—Thomas Reeve had a 

grocery store (11-23j, didn't he? 

(Turning right on Route 48 and then right again on Love Lane. 

IR; This is the McMillan house (11-24) to your left, it used 

to be a Tavern and a Saloon. Also a rooming house. Of 

course the Saloon was torn down, that was a little hit east 

of it, the other side. It was attached to it. 
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McMillan home Once a boarding house, the Eureka House 
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I: Now, who were the first Reeves here? 

IR: Well I know that my Great-grandfather, Jessie Reeve was in 

West Mattituck '(Map I). We were West Mattituckers, and I think 

eventually we should take you up that way too. It's about two 

miles up, 

IR; Well more than likely, now how about Herbert? I haven't 

seen Herbert for a long time. Herbert Reeve. 

RT; He's pretty good. I was talking to him a day or two ago. 

IR: Were you? I haven't seen him. He's not, as far as I know, 

particularly related to me. 

I: Your Great-grandfather, his name again? 

IR: Jessie, J-e-s-s-i-e Reeve. Then my Grandfather was 

James Monroe. He came in that presidential era, James Monroe Reeve, 

but we were up, as I say, in West Mattituck, There were various 

others. There's a map in the Museum, 

I: And then your Father? 

IR; My Father was Henry James. 

RT: That same house and farm was in the Reeve family for three 

generations, wasn't it Irma? 

IR: Well, no, I don't think my Grandfather was in that house. 

I think he was in what was my Grandmother's house. But a brother 

of James Monroe I think owned our house Ralph. 

I; A brother of James Monroe? 

IR; A brother of James Monroe Reeve. 

I: Oh, O.K. I didn't want you to sneak in any presidents on 

me now. 
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IR: Oh no, no, no, we hadn't anything like that. 

I: What are some of the other families you mentioned, ones that 

go hack from the beginning of the town? Now you mentioned your 

Great-grandfather. What years would he be, say in his twenties? 

IR; Well, when was Monroe president? Because that was his son 

you see. I can look that up, I can't tell you right off hand. 

I; The 1700's? 

IR; The late 1700's. 

RT; The Gildersleeves go way back pretty well too. 

IR; The Gildersleeves go way back, and I guess probably Wells 

and certainly the Wickhams. 

RT; Yes, yes. We are going by what used to be the Pike house 

(11-30), that's the Barker house now. This yellow house, it 

stood on the main road at one time, didn't it Irma? 

IR; Was it moved? I didn't know that. It was Barkers when I 

knew it. 

RT; The street was named after Pike, and he was a relation to 

Otis (Otis Pike, Congressman. Ed.) 

(Turning right on Wickham Ave. and then right on Route 25 

RT: We're coming to the one on the left after Bohacks. (11-31) 

IR: Oh yes, that's right, see the little white hbuse. Oh no, 

you better watch the road. Now this little house here. 

RT: 1776 House. (11-32) 

IR; The Presbyterian Church (11-33) was .... I don't think this 

was the 1715 one, but there was a church here back as late as 

1715, and this is a very old cemetery. 

RT: Do you want to go up to West Mattituck Irma? 

IR: Well, we could. 

(Going west on Sound Avenue out of the village. ) 

IR: Penny's Lumber (11-34) is nuite old. 



(Photo kindness N. Duryee) 
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RT: Yes, it goes back two generations. 

I: George L. Penny. Do you know what the original Penny's 

name was? Was it George also? 

IR: His grandfather was George, and he has a grandson who is 

George the fifth. 

IR: Now^Lyle Hallock (1-35) house would be fairly old, wouldn't 

it? 

RT: I think so Irma. 

I: Was that a farm? 

RT: I'd say a small one. I don't really know. There was 

quite a little land to it. 

IR: She was a very good dressmaker, that's all I know. 

RT: I think she was sister to Otto Hallock, was she? 

IR: Well, was it Otto? I guess you're right. 

I: There's quite a bit of wooded land around. 

IR: Almost every farm I would think, correct me if I'm not 

right, had a woods, and they were cut down. 

I; This is Sound Avenue? 

IR: It used to be auite a main road. Now this is an old house 

that was Hallock's (1-37). They remodeled it to ouite an extent 

I'm sure it did not have that stained glass window on the back. 

RT: Hannah still lives, doesn't she? 

IR: Hannah still, but she's in a Nursing Home in Riverhead. 

Elberta (Elberta Hudson Reeve* 18-EHR-l) is there too. 

RT: Oh yes, she is still there. 

IR: It might be....now this is an old house, the Kirkup house 

(1-38) here. And right up,.... it's a little hard to tell now. 

The little old red schoolhouse—right here. Yeah, that's where 

it was. 

*The first name may have been Lyde, Ed, 
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PENNY LUMBER AND FLOOR^ 
ING CENTERS, North Road, Mat-
tituck, 298-8559, and Main Road, 
Greenport, 477-0400. The Penny family 
has owned and operated this husiness 
since 1890; the Greenport facility was 
purchased from Greenport Lumber in 
1961. Penny's is the oldest liunbeiyard 
on long Island under continuous, single-
family ownership. George Penny IV and • 
his brother, Geoffroy, are fourth-gener­
ation family members active in the bus­
iness today. Penny operates two full-
service ya«ls, offering everything for 
building a new house or renovating an 
old one. The company's planning sei^ 
vice can draw blueprints for a new home 
or addition. The carpeting departments 
in both Greenport and Mattituck offer 
sales and installation of a wide range 
of carpeting and vinyl flooring at 
reasonable prices. Penny's has 33 em­
ployees and serves both the North and 
South Forks, Shelter Island and 
beyond. . 
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I; O.K. How do you spell Kirkup? 

IR: K-i-r-k-u-p. 

I: O.K. 

IR: This house we're coming to on the right was Clifford Aldrichs' 

(1-39) It was Mayo's before that. M-A-Y-0. 

RT: Wasn't the Mayo's house recently rebuilt? 

IR: Well, I think they've added to it now recently. 

IR: Now we're looking straight at my old home. (1-45) 

I: That white one on the right? 

IR: That one there. But in between, that was my Grandmother's, 

that would have been James M. Reeves', (l-42) That lane, 

do you suppose that is open? 

RT: I doubt it. 

IR: That's Hallocks (1-41) up there. 

I: Who had this land across the street here? 

IR; Well my Uncle John Reeve (1-44) I guess owned this. 

RT: I think so, yes. 

I; How big was the average farm? Do you have any idea in 

acreage? 

IR: Well I think my Father's was somewhere around.... 

RT: What did you say, fifty, sixty acres Irma? 

IR: I think between fifty and sixty down there, but I think 

this was Uncle John's. This was moved from farther west, but 

this was my Uncle's home here.* 

I: Ah, John Reeve. 

IR; Now James M. had that one (1-4 2), and Roy Reeves lived 

there as a child. Then beyond this is the Howell house (1-4 6), 

and that, I was so afraid they were going to tear that one down, 

because that is I am sure, older than ours was. 

* Irma first indicated the Ellig R§©vi heui© (1-43) and then her 

ynele'i house (1-44). 
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RT: I think it was, yeah. 

IR: And it's still there. Now they have renovated it. It 

isn't restored., hnt you would prohahly say it is changed, hut 

it is very respectable looking. And the outside, I don't 

think it had shutters like^hat, 

I: When was that house huilt? 

IR: Well, I don't know exactly. It should have heen in the 

lR30's nrohahly, somewhere along in there I think. 

Between 1R30 and 1B50.* 

I: Has that house heen hack there for awhile also? 

IR: That's old, that's Omar Hallock's house (1-41)- and 

I don't know who predated hira, I imagine his Father. 

RT: That house was there as long as you rememher? -

IR: Oh sure, yes indeed. 

I: It's all potato farm now, is that.,.. 

IR: Oh look, it's the old huggy. 

RT: It's the kind I used to galin' in. 

I: Well we found our wagon, now all we need is a couple of 

horses. 

IR; That would really.(laughter), I 

I: Now in those times when you were a little girl growing up 

in this house how did you pick the tomatoes? Just on the hack of 

a tractor? or a horse drawn...? 

IR; A tractor? What are you talking ahout? 

RT: Never did hear tell of such a thing. 

I: Well yeah, you don't look that old to me. 

* Irma told us that north of the Howell house on the 
Sound was a shack where people went with their, families 
to picnic and swim and sometimes to stay overnight. 
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IR: Tomatoes were picked by hand as far as I know, and the 

potatoes too. 

I: Did the family work at that, or did all the families work 

on each one at a time, or .... 

IR: Each on their own. 

I: And did you hire extra people at that time? 

IR: Yeah. 

I: They were migrant workers? 

IR: No, this was before the migrant wave, the man who worked 

with my Pather was, well he was somehow related in the family, 

a Harry Jackson. He worked for my Dad, and then he married 

my Aunt. 

I: So they were more or less local people. 

IR: That's right. Later, later the migrant. 

RT: Polish. 

IR: Well Polish, and then later Puerto - - , no not Puerto Rican 

well somewhere, more or less - -

I: But the Poles were first? 
i 

IR: Yes, I would think, and they were very good workers. 

RT: A lot of them did, which I guess you and your Dad did, 

you'd build a small house on the place and have a Polish couple, 

and the wife could put up brussel sprouts.* The Polish people 

they put up sprouts at night in their house. They used 

to get two cents a quart. 

IR: Here, this is the HoWell house. (I-46) 

RT: I don't think the structure has changed too much has it 

Irma? 

IR: I don't think the structure has, but the .... 

*fhig refers to packing sprouts in quart containers lor market 
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RT: The inside .... 

I: That chimney looks original. 

IR: Inside has a lot, and those Penneridge trees* un there, 

see that little clumt), they've heen there ever since I can 

rememVier. And this of course, is ahout where Lilco is trying 

its hest to huild a Nuclear Plant and we're all iust fighting 

it. I think it'll he washed into the Sound, that's ray 
* 

latest theory. Now, as I say, this is the very edge of 

Riverhead Township. Riverhead Town thinks they all gain so 

much from the taxes you know, that they're not against it, 

hut everybody else is, and all the farmers even I think, most 

of them in Riverhead Town are. 

I; Where does the Town start right now, just right up the 

road here? 

IR: Well, right up here somewhere. I'ra surprised there 

isn't a marker hut there isn't. 

I: Those trees out in the middle, those, that's the sarae old 

clump of Pepper trees? 

IR:' Pepperidge, Pepperidge. There's another name for it. 

I: Is that a kind of tree? 

IR: Yeah. It has nothing to do with Pepperidge Farras that 

I know of. All we had was an old swamp in there.** Let me 

tell you this while we're here. 

I; Near those trees? 

IR: See that clump of trees over there? Well, that was very 

swampy, I think it's mostly filled itself in in the meantime, 

* Gum trees and acacia trees are sometimes called Pepneridge trees 

**iqR4. The old swamp could not he located exactly. It lay 
behind ,north of Sound Ave, 
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That's where we got our ice every winter. They would, go out 

there, my Father and his two brothers would go up there and 

cut the ice, and we had an ice house which was a cellar. This 

house was a Jackson House. (1-47) 

I: This small one here? 

IR: That may he, that's heen changed more than the Howells. 

(Turning around to go hack along Sound Aye.) 

I: O.K. Where were you in the hurricane of '38? 

IR: I was in New Haven. 

RT: I was shovelling potatoes down in Tuthill town. 

I: Where is Tuthill town? 

RT: Well, Eli.iah's Lane. It's a mile and a half east of the 

Library. 

I: What is Tuthilltown? 

RT: Well, it used to be oh, nrobably ten families of Tuthills, 

but now there's only one left. 

IR: Now wait a minute Ralph, you asked me about the Ellis Reeve 

house that was moved from one of the Hallock places about a 

half mile or mile or west. (1-43) 

RT: That so? 

IR: And how they moved it, it must have been on some kind of 

a flat thing, I've forgotten how. 

RT: Skids probably. 

IR: Probably skids. Helen, my cousin and I, they pulled us, 

we sat on it. I can't remember how old we were, but that was 

kind of exciting. 

I; You nulled it on horses and skids? Ahout how many horses 

do you think there were? 
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IR; I don't '^now. 

RT; They had a windlass I thinV, and the horse iust went 

around. 

IR; Was that it? I can't rememher that part of it. 

I: A windlass? What's that? 

RT; It had a wheel and had a rope go around it, and gradually 

it gave a lot of leverage. 

I; Like a pulley? 

RT; Ummm that's right. 

(Turning south on Aldrich Lane) 

IR; This was another Aldrich house, (I- 49 ) Gilbert Aldrich 

lived there. Now it's Kujawski. Their grandfather was one of 

the first of the Polish to buy his own house. 

I; What street is this? 

IR; This is, let's see this is Aldrich Lane I think they call 

it. It seems to- me we used to call all of this Laurel Lane, 

but it goes into Laurel. I think it's Aldrich Lane now. 

This was a little schoolhouse (l-5l) on the next comer here. 

My sister taught school there for a year or so. 

I; Is this an old cenetery (I-50)? It looks like some pretty 

old stones in there, 

IR; Yes, They called this nart Franklinville (1-52) at 

one time. Franklinville went along here and down toward the 

Bay. 
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RT: That was the schoolhouse wasn't it? 

I; That hlue house? 

IR: Yes, hut the Mattituck one was older, in West Mattituck.* 

This is the little hamlet of Laurel. 

(Turning east on Route 25 and going hack into the village) 

IR: Mrs. McNulty's, now there's another old one.** 

I: Now that's Irish, huh? 

IR: Uh huh, and well,John was a little younger than I. Was 

he in your class in Mattituck Ralph? 

RT: No, he was a little ahead of me. I used to play with 

him around a lot, hut he was a little ahead of me. 

I: When did you graduate from High School? 

RT: Never did. 

I: Grammar school? 

RT: Two years of high. 

IR: That was as far as the Mattituck School went. (1-25) 

I had to go to Riverhead. I commuted to Riverhead to high 

school. I left at 8:00 o'clock in the morning, and I got hack 

at 6:00 at night. 

I: Do you rememher what the fare was? 

IR: No, I don't know. It's ahout eight, no ten miles I guess. 

I: Did you pick potatoes through the storm Ralph? 

RT: Well, we were shovelling, up in a harn, 

I: Did anything hlow down, or — 

*Both schoolhouses are found on a map dated 1858, 
**This house is on the southeast comer of Laurel Lane and 
Route 25 in Laurel. 
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RT: Oh yes. 

I: Did you lose anything? 

RT: The harn on each side of me blew dovm. The harn .1 was in 

didn't hlow dovm hut the telephone service was cut, some of the 

wires were dovm, 

I: Did you have any flooding? 

RT: Yes, right dovm to the bridge, (The old Grand Avenue 
* 

bridge, Ed.) 

IR: We're heading back to the Library now. 

RT: Before the Library there was a school here, it s torn 

dovm now. (1-25) 

I; How large was it? 

RT: Eight rooms, I guess. Eventually it was a high school. 

End of Tape 



From a brochure printed by the I-lat-tituck Historical Society 

1846 

WEST MATTITUCK'S 
"LirrLE EGYPT" SCHOOLHOUSE 

On March l6, 1846, the following Board of 
Trustees approved the raising of $400.00 to build 
a new schoolhouse in West Mattituck, on Sound 
Avenue, to replace the one on Manor Lane buih 
in 1792. Sylvester Howell taught there in 1820, 
Miss Mary A. Gildersleeve 1876-1880, Miss Julia 
Barber 1880-1883, Miss Annie Clark 1884-1892. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES IN 1846 

Stephen Cox 
Sylvester Cooper 
Bethuel Hallock 
Irad Downs 
Laurens Hallodc 
John Reeve 
Thomas Hallock 
Daniel Downs 
Hiram Simons 
John Aldrich 

Stephen Aldrich 
Elisha Aldrich 
Benjamin S. Hallock 
Sylvester Howell 
David Hallock 
Lewis Goldsmith 
Martin L. Robinson 
Gilbert Davis 
Tuthill Hortoii . 

This 131 year old building is a typical one room 
schoolhouse with a vestibule, which is classical in 
design, of the Greek Revival Period. 

We have learned from a former pupil, Fred 
Silkworth (now 79) that a school day was from 
9 •'00 to 4:00, with an hour for lunch. Wood 
was passed along an assembly line of boys, from 
the woodpile through the right rear window, right 
up to the stove which sat in the center of the 
room. Drinking water was in a bucket with a 
ladle, on a table in the front vestibule. The water 
pump was out front. 

It was not uncommon to be allowed an hour and 
a half to go ice skating. If you broke a window, 
you fixed it. The bluestone in the front retain­
ing wall was part of the original foundation, and 
was brought over from Connecocut on Clipper 
Ships as ballast. Mr. Silkworth says his fondest 
memories are of the happy days he and his class­
mates spent in this schoolhouse. 

The attendance of 26 pupils in the class of 1900-
1905 was as follows 

TEACHERS:- J. Addison Wells, 
Miss Lucy Swezey 

PUPILS 

Aldrich, Effie 
Flora 

twins 

Bennett, Lizzie 

Bergen, Frank 
Mabel 
Margaret 
Tom 

Boston, Mabel 

Brazier, Lester 
George 

Cox, Gladys 
Mildred 

Hallock, Hannah 

Jones, Ella 

Reeve, Beulah 
(Mrs. Geo. Penny) 

Helen 
(Mrs. Leslie Wells) 

Irma 

Silkworth, Alben 
Fred 
Walter 

Wells, Addison 
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AUTOBIOGRAPHICAL SKETCH 45-IR;HW-1 
Irma Reeve 46-IR:HW-2 

name — ^^ —  

birth date Nov. 1894 place Family home, V/est I-iattituck 

father's name ^enry James Reeve ^ 

mother's njmc Caroline Belle Robinson (Carrie to the familv) 

h• Tdhood help with dusting, washing, lamp chimneys etc 
Recreation: games, toys, swimming, picnics, cainping pick­

ing berries, sliding on snow, paper dolls, other dolls, reading 

education West Mattituck one-room .qchoni , T'lattlt\ick ^igh School, 
second year, Riverhead High School, two yearsCornell University, 
College of Arts & Sciences A.B. 1Q16. Phi "Rpta TTappa 

iob training ^^a^3sachusetts General Hospital School of Nursing. Part 
time classes, uoiumDia Teachers College, M.A. 1928 
work Publ i c Hfial th NUTH i ng, New York City 1920-2^, Oha.rgR nf Tuber^-
culosis Clinic, New "aven Hospital Dispensary with teaching of Yale 
nursing students 1930. New Haven Visiting Nurse Association, teaching 
Assixjiate Director, 1951-1962. Director Public Health Nursing, 

department of Health, New York State. 

member r»f Volunteer with Tube-pcul nsi s Pnbl i p Hpalth fttTgnpi-ati nn— 
and Suffolk County Mental Health Association — Member of both 
Boards of Directors. Board of Directors ^•'attitunk Prpp Lih-pa-ry an^ 
Mattituck Historical Society,Officer -^orth Fork Audubon 
special activities, projects, hobbies Travel, three monthR in Kurnpp, 
1927 with visits to schools of nursing, Scandinavian Nature Field trip 
1964, Isle of Jamaica, California •^'^ational Audubon Society^ 1966, 
jj'ioriaa iyb:$.- Bird watching, Columbia ^ountry and on the North Fork, 

spouse's name._ : ^ 

children's names — 

major turning points.in: 

Mattituck my life my field of interest 
1 College —nursing at beginning of World V/ar T 
2 Public Health Nursing 
3 Retirement, oppoytunity for travel, activity 
4 WithAudubon So^pi-ety. Volunteer activities, 

5 mostly in Publac Health 

for me, Mattituck was Home 

Mattituck is Home and opportunity tn be c1 ORP tn my ymmg. 
relatives 

I'd like Mattituck to >^ppnmp ^'^ore conscious of health problems, their 
causes and prevention. More interest in environment .and need for 
protecting it. 

A of above; -your opinions are welcome.') 
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MATTITUCK ORAI HISTORY 

Tape No. 45-IR:HW-l Date of Interview; Spring 1978 
Authors; Irma Reeve Interviewer; Richard Mack 

Helen Wells 
Estelle Wells, 

daughter of Helen 

Early Mattituck 

There were a number of interruptions in making this 

tape. Some material not pertinent to the subject was 

included, and there were many unclear passages. We have 

transcribed the parts that deal with early Mattituck, 

indicating where the tape was not clear enough to be 

understood. The interview began apparently, after a 

discussion of the Iron Pier, 

IR: (Unclear) he would know about the Iron Pier up at the 

Sound. It's about three or four miles west of Mattituck. 

HW; Yes, that was going to be for the farmers, supposed to 

be for the farmers of the eastern end of Long Island. 

I; Did that pier get blown away in a storm? 

HW: It got cut off by ice. The ice was terrible that winter 

I: What size shius could it accommodate? 

HW: Well, they were s^ooners. They were going to bring in 

seed potatoes and take out potatoes. That was what it was. 

To make our sales of crops easier, in transporting the crop. 

I; So that way you could use the trains and the boats? And 

would they go all the way into New York City from here? 

HW; Yes. 
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I: How "big wotild you estimate the pier to "be? The size of 

a football field maybe, that long? 

HW; Oh, wait a minute, I don't think so. We have some 

history, I don't know how far out into the water it went. 

I; But it was iron. It wasn't wood, it was iron? 

HW: Yes. All iron. Pilings, they just cut right off 

like you cut it with a knife. 

I: Was there a street that went down to that? 

HW; Oh yes, there was a public road. 

I: Is the road still there? 

HW: Yes. Pier Avenue. 

I: You say it's slightly west of the Mattituck border? 

HW: Yes. Quite a ways. 

I; Is it west of your house, Irma? 

IR; Quite a bit. 

Tape interrupted 

I: It says here, "In the winter of 1903-04 the cold was 

intense and the Sound had been a solid cake of ice from 

three to five feet thick. During a weekend of warmer weather 

the shore ice softened and high north winds and strong 

tides shifted the ice so the pier was crushed and broken 

off and cast up on the beach. This was the end of the venture 

and came on February 13, 1904." So, the pier was only in 

operation for three years, three or four years. 

HW; That's right. 
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I: And at that time it cost $10,000. It was huilt by 

Northville Pier and Land Improvement Company. I wonder who 

paid for it. There was a group of farmers? 

HW; They had stock in it. 

I; Well that gives us that story. I've got several 

photographs which people have lent us of that big freeze in 

1904. Ice just piled stories high along the shore from 

breaking up. These were pictures on the bay, 

HW: Oh, it was like big houses built up. 

Tape interrupted 

I: You wanted me to mention — 

HW: The County jair. 

I: Now, that went on in Riverhead, right? 

HW; Yes, it sure did. 

I; When did they stop doing that? In the 30's? 

IR: Yes. We looked that up. It was in the 30's. 

HW; It doesn't seem that long ago. 

I: Do you remember going there? What kind of activities 

went on? 

HW; Everything that goes on at a fair. Merry-go-rounds 

and all kinds of things to get— 

I: Horse races? 

HW; Yes, horse races, and I guess they had a car race 

towards the last, didn't they? 

IR; They probably did. 

HW; We had a car race around here. You've heard about that? 

I: Otto Dohm won one year. I interviewed him last week. 



IR;HW-1 Page 4 

IR; Oh really. 

I; Otto Dohm. He's 93. 

HW; Why, the Dohm's live right near to you, don't they? 

IR; Walter does, his son. 

I: He was a mechanic, an automobile mechanic mostly, 

IR; To go back to the /air. It was either four or five 

days. Almost a week long. And it must have been in 

September. I know as children, we had one day off from 

school when we could go to the County fair and we were 

always afraid it would rain. 

HW; One week it rained every day. It rained and rained. 

IR; Of course, there were no cars. This was before the 

car race even, and we drove up there. It usually took about 

an hour, I think, almost an hour to get to Riverhead. 

I: Horse and wagon? 

IR; Horse and wagon. 

I; What was your favorite thing? 

IR; There were all kinds of exhibits. Cattle and other 

animals, chickens — 

HW; And they always had some special show, someone jumping 

off the toT3 of a wall or some crazy thing like that, you know. 

IR; And then the horse racing. There must have been - it 

was a circular course, wasn't it? 

HW: Well, each farmer, they could enter their animals and 

get prizes, 

I: Cattle, pigs, chickens, horses? 
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IR: Well, I don't reraemlDer there were horses 

I: Horses were prohahly jtist raced? 

IR: I think so, 

I: Were there any baking contests? 

IR: Oh yes, there were baking contests of all kinds. Fancy 

work and flowers. The Grange always had an exhibit, 

HW: Oh yes, all the Granges, 

IR: I remember even when I was in college helping my 

father with the Mattitnck exhibit. This was a Grange 

exhibit,,, ,T)otatoes. 

I: How would you exhibit potatoes? 

IR: Well, each one had a little booth of its own, sort of. 

Each Grange, I mean. They would arrange it as they saw fit, 

I guess one Grange got a prize, 

HW; First, second, third, fourth, and sometimes fifth 

prizes. 

IR: Well, even individual people could enter things. 

HW; Well yes, but I was thinking for the moment of the 

Grange exhibits. The Grange exhibit was all one place. 

Fancied up, fixed up nice, 

I; Was Mattituck a Grange all of its own? 

HW; A Grange all of its own, 

EW; They .iust disbanded oh maybe six or seven years ago, 

or so, (unclear) fast dwindling away, 

HW: It's gone downhill, 

EW; They used to be,,,well about agricultural laws for 

things like gas taxes for farmers and so on, you know. But 



anyway they were really a farmers', an agricultural 

organization. 

IR: (Unclear) an active organization. 

I: I wonder if anything took its place when it disbanded. 

IR: It's hard to say that anything takes it place. Now 

Mattituck had the Village Improvement Society, and that 

died. Now it is being revived. It would be all that kind 

of thing but, of course, farming has changed too and the 

automobile, the possibility of more travel. Interests have 

broadened so that the farmers maybe don't have (unclear). 

And then there is the Farm Bureau and the Extension Service. 

I: Let me ask you, Mrs. Wells, how long have you lived in 

Mattituck? 

HW: All my life. 

IR: Helen lived across the street from me. 

I: Did you grow up together? 

HW: Sure. More like twins than anything else. 

I: Where were you bom, right on the farm? 

HW; Well, sure. Everybody was in those days. 

I: I see. Did the family doctor come out? 

HW: Why, of course. You could get a doctor anytime you 

wanted. 

I; Do you remember who the doctor was at that time? 

HW; Dr. Morton. 

IR; Now whether he took care of the babies, I guess so, 

I don't remember. 
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I: What kinds of things wonld a doctor treat in those 

times? What were the common diseases? 

IR: Well, let me see. We had measles and mumps, I fell 

out of the hammock and hroke this arm. There were no x—rays 

in those days, 

I: How old were you? 

IR: Oh, I don't know, seven or eight, I was showing off 

in the hammock and it turned over. 

I: Did he ride out in his horse and carriage? 

IR: Well, I've forgotten whether they took me into his 

office or whether he came out. He was in Mattituck 

village, two miles away, 

I: Now if he made a prescription for you, who would fill 

the prescription? They had a drug store, didn't they? 

IR: I think so. Oh yes, they must have had (unclear). 

They might have gone to Riverhead to get the prescription 

filled, 

HW: As long as I remember, they had a drug store, 

I: The doctor might have had his own pills. That's what 

I was thinking, 

EW: Very possible. 

I: Okay. So you went to grammar school together? 

IR: We went to the little red schoolhouse for four or 

five years. 

I; Was it the first one or the second one? 

IR: The second one. Then we went in to Mattituck village, 

where the Library is now. 

I: So you actually changed in the middle? Do you remember 

what grade you were in at that time? 
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IR: I think, the fifth. I've got the record of it. 

I: Okay. You grew up together. Did you play out in that 

little groove of trees in the middle of the field that you 

showed me? 

IR: Oh no. Because that was the next farm. But I also 

pointed out the swamn out to the east of that. I was auite 

likely to go up there by myself occasionally. 

HW: (Unclear) in the trees above the water, to see how 

near we could get without getting wet. We had a lot of 

fun. 

I: That was where they cut the ice? 

HW: Yes. 

IR: Now, just remember we didn't put this in the water that 

we were going to drink. This was for the ice box. You call 

it a refrigerator. 

I: Where was the pond? 

IR: Well, I showed you the trees and then to the right of 

that, east of it was the swamn. (north of Sound Ave., behind 

Irma's house. It apnears to be filled in now 1P84). 

I: Did you ever go together to a dance? Did you double 

date or anything like that? 

HW: No. I don't think anybody did in those days. 

I; How did you get... 

HW; I don't know. The fellows came around. 

I: You went to the Literary? 

IR: Well, yes. 

HW: Yes, uh huh. They had a beautiful hall in Mattituck. 

Do you remember? 

IR: Yeah, wasn't that beautiful? 
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HW: Goodness, I cried when they took that down. It was 

s-uch a well-huilt thing, you know. 

I: Why did they take it down? 

IR: Oh, they had to have room for narking. 

I: Was that the reason? There is a parking lot there now? 

HW: Just take it away. Elmer Ruland said, "Oh that was 

some building to take down." He went over when they were 

taking it to pieces. The beautiful timber that was in that. 

He said they had two big trucks, not trucks but big engines 

up on top of that second floor, and (unclear) break. It was 

built so it would hold most anything. 

IR: I was away at that time. I often wondered why they 

had to take that down. 

HW: Of course, it wasn't in a good nlace, well in that corner 

on the street. You know, no room around it. Sitting right 

in the street. I don't know. They have to use that 

bulldozer on everything. 

I: Who was responsible for taking it down? 

HW: Well, I don't know if the village voted to have it 

taken down or not. I doubt it. I don't know how it got down. 

IR: Well, I know we danced there when it was....before I 

went away. 

HW: Oh, they had a beautiful hall upstairs, 

I: Was that part of the Literary? 

IR: Well, the Literary used it. 

I; Who sponsored the dances? 

HW: The men's lodge had a dance every year and a sunuer. 



d*s-eye View of Mattituck, Showing the Station in the Centre and Lupton Hall and Library 
Building to the right 
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Then they had a dance that stayed till midnight. I thought 

I was real smart to sit up to midnight. And the Literary had 

dances there. 

I: Now this was before you were married? 

HW; Yes. 

I; Do you remember whom you went with? 

HW; I went with my father and mother, but my mother went 

home after supper. But my father loved to dance. 

IR; I guess he did, didn't he. But my father didn't so.... 

HW; Your father and mother went home together. They didn't 

care, didn't care anything about the dance. But my father 

could dance when he was 90 years old if anybody asked him to. 

He loved it. 

I: I understand that one of the greatest things for a young 

lady in Mattituck at that time was to be invited to the 

Literary. 

IR; Yeah, I suppose. 

I; And according to, I believe, Ra3nBond Tuthill or 

Donald Gildersleeve, I don't remember which, if there was 

some girl that they had their eye on and they wanted a sure-fire 

way of getting a date with her, they would invite her to the 

Literary because it was the big thing to go to that. 

HW: I didn't go to Litr?'^ry very much. 

I; How old were you when you got married? 

HW: Eighteen. 

I; Was that a pretty common age at that time? 

HW; Kind of young. 

I: You don't remember any of your courting? I'm trying to 

find out what people did when they went out for entertainment. 
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HW: We didn't have to go every night or every day somewhere 

to he happy. (Laughter) We'd stay home. 

I: Courting? How ahout Friday night or Saturday night? 

HW: Well, if he was a farmer, he'd come when he could, 

when he wasn't too tired. 

I: So it was nretty much, you .iiJst sort of stayed at home 

and, you know talked? 

HW: We went out to different things. 

I: What kinds of things? 

HW: Well, if there was anything that we thought that would 

he interesting. 

I: Do you remember anything? 

HW: I don't think it was Literary, hut there were a series, 

do you remember Irma, travel lectures? 

I: Movies? 

HW: Yes, They had movies in that hall too? 

Ta-oe internapted 

IR: No. We had two years in high school in Mattituck. 

I: That was after the eighth grade? 

IR: Let's see. I was in Riverhead for senior and .itinior. 

So I had freshman and sophomore in Mattituck. I went to 

Riverhead in 1910, and graduated in 1912. Then I went to 

college the next fall for four years. Then I went that next 

fall into the school of nursing. And you see, I was away all 

that time and I really didn't come back. I mean I was 

working elsewhere. 

HW: I missed her. We used to ride our bicycles to school 

together many many times. 
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IR: We used to walk to school too. 

HW: Someti-Ties I walked, yes I walked from my house to 

Mattituck many many times. 

IR: Did you? I don't remember walking to Mattituck very 

often "hut, of course, we always walked hack and forth to 

school, 

HW: Oh, I did. If the wind was blowing hard I'd rather walk 

than ride a bicycle against that wind, 

I: Now did you get married when Irma was away? 

HW: Yes. 

I: Was the ceremony held in Mattituck? 

HW: It was held in my house. 

I: In your house? Do you remember what minister was there? 

HW: It was Dr. Craven 

I: Did you have the reception there also? 

HW: The immediate family. 

I: Just immediate family? 

HW: Well, there were too many young people. I couldn't 

invite them all. Our house was small. So I just invited 

uncles and aunts. 

I: Do you remember the hurricane of 193B at all? 

HW: Sure, I do. 

I: Where were you when that occurred? 

HW: I was here, I guess. Ihrerything was blowing down. 

IR: I was here getting ready to go back to Cornell. The 

next day I was supposed to take a train out of Riverhead, 

and there were no trains running. 

I: You got to Riverhead? Did you make it that far? 
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IR: No, we didn't. 

I: Do you remember the actual point that you figured out 

that this was more than just an ordinary storm? 

EW: Yes, I do. 

I: Tell me about it. 

EW: Well, my sister. Ann, who was ten years younger than I, 

was in high school at that time, and she was still in school. 

This was about two o'clock in the afternoon. It had been 

blowing like the old Harry but we didn't think much about it, 

and then all of a sudden it just got like a vacuum, just 

deathly quiet. You can't describe it. Like something is 

different, you know. 

It was so scary. I said, "Well now is the time" 

and I got in the car, and I went and got Ann and brought her 

home at that particular moment. And then, it turned around 

and came from the other way. My father said, "Well, the 

wind is going to blow real hard and you've got to get some 

boards on the windows of the east side of the house." So he 

says, "There are some doors up in the attic. You go up in 

the attic and get those doors and bring them down and put 

them against those windows." So I started to the attic. It's 

on the east. It's the other side to that room and I went up 

those stairs and as — We had a hickory tree in front of 

the house that was an old one — and as I got up to that 

window there were kind of three big branches of that tree. 

Each one was going around in a circle of its own. (Unclear) 

Oh what's going to keen this house, you know, when that tree 

hits going like that. But I got on un into the attic to get 
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the doors and I came down with one, and I got it right 

into the window that is on the east side, and that window 

exploded. It just went POW! and it went into millions of, 

you know, just little slivers. I got some down inside hut 

it didn't hit me anywhere that was really serious. 

I: You were on the inside? Did you have the door in front 

of you? 

EW: Yes. 

I: So that saved you? 

EW: That prohahly did, you know. The darn thing exploded. 

But then after that all that happened was branches blowing 

into the windows. Everything went down. 

HW: At least twenty-five big trees. 

EW: Yes. We had around twenty-five trees that went down. 

But the problem there was, of course, that it had rained 

ten days ahead, and that was what made it so bad. The funny 

thing about it is many of them actually could have been saved 

if we'd had the right equipment, block and tackle. We did 

save a couple here. Dad pulled back some and wired them up 

(unclear) if they told us about it. (Unclear) knew it was 

going to be very had, 

HW: Oh, nobody knew it, no. 

HW: Now they keep telling you (unclear) 

EW: It was when the pressure changed, of course. The wind 

came from the other direction, 

I: So, that means that the eye actually did pass over 

Mattituck? 

EW: Yes. Yes, yes! 
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I: Do yotj remember what the sky looked like when that vacuum 

hit? 

HW: We weren't looking at the sky much. 

EW: It was iust dark. I rememher I sat right in that chair 

right there. It's hard to rememher what I was thinking of 

because they were worrying about Ann being in school. That 

was the problem. And we had no public transportation then. 

You had to take care of your own family. So I sat right there 

wondering, pondering whether to .... Then it got dark. That's 

the only thing, you know, that I remember. 

I: It got dark? This is after it had been raging for a 

little while. 

EW; Yes. It got darker. But the interesting thing to me was 

that sometime later after we were married and we were interested 

in rocks and minerals we went up to Massachusetts to a place 

near Northampton, Massachusetts, in Goshen where he wanted 

to look for a mineral they had up there. But their sugar bush 

in Goshen had been hit. This thing came right up in 1938, 

right up through the middle of here and went straight up 

there. That sugar bush had been no good since 1938. The 

trees were taken down by the wind. That was really like a 

movie set. The wooden buckets were sitting right where they 

had been left. There was a sugar house that was iust like 

they'd walked out and left everything there. 

(Unclear) 

Yes, yes. The trees went in every direction so they 

couldn't do anything in there anjrmore. But it was full of 
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"big white quartz houlders. That's where our white quartz 

came from during the glacial period. It came down and 

deposited white quartz here for Long Island, But all we 

see are small white quartz pieces. We seldom find a large 

one. But that was part of the 1938 hurricane that was 

interesting to me. 

Tape interrupted 

IR: You know I got thinking ahout the old time peddlers, 

I: Tell me ahout the peddlers. 

IR: There was one peddler who came around with aluminum. 

Helen, do you rememher that? When aluminum was first used, 

I'm sure there was one peddler who came around with aluminum 

utensils. But now - well I'm pretty sure it was before I 

went to college. 

IR: We had tinware then also -

Tape interrupted 

I: Was it a local person with all the tin? 

HW: Well, he didn't live very far away. He lived on the 

east end of the island. He lived somewhere down in Cutchogue 

or Orient. He used to come in time for dinner. And then he 

would give us something, you know. (Unclear) Of course, we 

had the threshers in our yard, threshing wheat and rye. 

(Unclear) that first hurned wood, I think, in the engine 

to make the power. 

I: They were steam-powered? 

HW: (Unclear) steam engine. 

I: And you had these out in your fields? 
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HW: Well, they would hring the grain into the ham, and then 

T)itch it out of the ham into the thresher machine and — 

I: So the thresher was stationary? 

HW: Yes. It would stay there. Well, they could pull it 

around. It was on wheels, hut (unclear) He and another man 

generally came and stayed for dinner. Oh, that was always a 

hig event. They would thresh your farm when it came your 

turn. And they'd hring the threshing machine, and all the men 

who helped. They'd pitch in. It was sort of like a house-

raising, you know. They'd take turns, going from place to 

place and doing it for somebody else. So when they came to 

your house, they you fed everybody that was there depending 

on how much you had, a day or two. 

I: Was that usually how long it would last for about a day 

or two? 

EW: Well, here it did. I don't know about - I can just 

remember when the threshing machine had to come here to do 

the job. 

HW: Oh, they only stayed, generally one day, did it up in 

one day. If they didn't they'd come back the next. 

EW; That's what I mean, a day or two. 

I: Would all the farmers help each other also? 

E¥: Well, yes. Every farmer doesn't have a combine. We 

rent it from somebody. 

I; Oh I see, so everyone got together and rented the machine, 

maybe one man from the company attending it? 

EW: Well, you had to have somebody who was used to it, 

somebody who would stay with it all the time. Somebody who 
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knew what its quirks were, I guess...kick it in the side to 

get it to go.,,.I was so little, I was so young, I didn't 

worry ahout how it worked. I rememher seeing it come in. 

I: Did it make a lot of noise? 

EW: Yes. 

I: Now, this would he around har^rest time? In the fall? 

EW: Yes. 

I: And this was seTJarating the grain from the wheat? 

EW: Yes. Prom the straw. 

I: The grain from the straw. I iust wanted to ask you one 

other thing. Do you recall around that same time any kind 

of harvest celebration or something like that? 

HW: The County Fair, I guess. 

EW: That was more it than anything. That was another place 

that — I was thinking when she said she couldn't rememher 

where they dated. That, I'm sure, was a TJlace that everybody 

met everybody else. That was a hig thing to get to the :^air. 

Then you went around on the Ferris Wheel or you stayed for 

a night show or something. That was the big deal for dating, 

having fun at the fair. 

I: Do you recall any clam bakes in the summertime? 

IR: Oh sure. But they were usually family affairs, I 

think. 

EW: We used to have Grange picnics. They were really nice. 

HW: First one tent, then two tents, then part of a little 

building, then a tent. (Unclear) the Jamesnort campground — 
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I: At one of those Grange picnics, what would you do? 

Would you eat hotdogs? 

H; Oh, we all brought a dish. That was the hig thing. 

You know, we didn't have to do much. I keep thinking ahout 

how fancy or elaborate, I should say, that we go into 

picnics, a lot of folks do nowadays. But we used to take 

a blanket and a dish to pass, and our dishes, and sit down 

and pass the dish around. Everybody took some of everybody 

else's. We sat right on the blanket and ate. We didn't 

have to have chairs or tables or anything else, you know. 

It was so much simpler. 

Tane interrupted 

I: Did you plant the walnut trees yourself? 

HW; Oh well, yes. My husband's father was given little, 

well they were about, maybe like that. 

I; How big are they now? 

HW; They're taller than that building. 

I; They're taller than that? 

IR; Helen, you remember our black walnut tree in the 

backyard? 

HW; Yes, we have them too. 

I; Has walnut ever really been an industry in Mattituck or 

iust a personal family thing? 

HW; Yes. Everybody had their walnut tree. 

I: These are better than anything that you'd buy. I saw 

them out on the porch. They looked like they were homegrown, 

you know. 
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HW: They're not as polished. We didn't wash them. What 

I mean is, the ones you huy they put them through a wash 

so they look different. 

Interruption 

I: (Unclear) peanuts, they grow on the ground? 

HW: Oh yes, yes. You should see them grow. They are the 

most fascinating things. They hloom on top of the ground, 

and then the blossom goes down in and produces the fruit. 

They bury themselves in the ground and produce the peanut. 

It's tremendous. They are pretty. They are a lovely green 

plant, and then they have bright yellow blossoms. It's 

usually way along in the summer when they bloom. You can't 

dig 'em until oh, September, October I guess, about October, 

Interruption 

I: At that time, did you used to get your tea from 

Gildersleeve's? 

HW: Tea? Everything, 

I: Your meat, you would get from the butcher? Who was the 

butcher then? 

HW: That was Mr. Reeve, 

HW: Do you ever see Gertrude (Gertrude Reeve Ra^mor) anjmore? 

IR: Not recently, I haven't, no, 

HW: We were over there this past fall. We went to Julia's 

birthday party. This is Dr, Craven's daughter, Julia Craven Penny, 

HW; Julia never married but until quite late in life. 

IR: She was a second wife to Mr. Penny. 
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I: Elberta Hudson Reeve? 

IR: She's in the nursing home in Riverhead. 

HW: She and I used to he pretty good friends. 

IR: It's a great shame. She has a very nice house down 

on the Bay. hut she couldn't find anyone to stay with her 

and take care of her. 

Interruption. 

I: You're talking ahout dressmaking? 

IR: That was something that was important in those days. 

I: (Unclear) 

IR: Well, sure we had (unclear) She'd come and usually 

I think she'd spend two days with us. She'd stay overnight. 

HW: Oh yes. 

I: And she would fit you and make the dress right in your 

own home? 

HW; Yes. 

I; She brought her own sewing machine? 

IR: Oh no, we had a machine. 

I; What kind of materials would she make a dress out of? 

HW: Anything you wanted. She was wonderful. 

I; What would she charge for a dress? 

IR: Not for a dress. This would be by the day, so much 

a day. 

I: How long would it take to make a dress? 

IR; I don't know really. But usually, some member of the 

family, in my case it would have been my Aunt Nell who 

lived with us, would work along with her. 
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HW: You know, I can see that iust as plain. Aunt Nell and 

your mother (unclear) working along with her in your west 

room there. You had a fire in the fireplace, and oh it was 

so nice. We kids were all over there just having a wonderful 

time looking at them. I rememher they were making your 

mother a hlue foulard dress, foulard silk. It was very 

soft. 

Interruption 

HW: But one of the things in Mom's house, down at Grandpa Reeve's, 

that always impressed me as a youngster was that you had 

electricity down there before we had it here. 

IR: Oh really. Uh huh, 

HW: So, as a child I always had to shine the lamp chimneys. 

We'd go down to Grandpa Reeve's and push that light button. 

We'd push the button and the light would go on. 

I: Was that the first electric light you ever saw? 

HW: Yeah. 

I: What was your impression? 

HW: (Unclear) it was just magical. That was really great 

of course, they lived without electricity and without central 

heating. 

IR: Oh, I loved that old coal stove (unclear). 

I: Would that coal stove in the living room he enough to 

heat UP the whole living room? 

IR: Well, sure. Well, the living room, yes, but no more. 

I: How did you heat up the bedrooms? 

IR: It was awfully cold. You might take something up to 

warm the bed. 
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I: Were there hedwarmers? 

IR: Soapstone I can't rememher, hut I'm sure mayhe even a 

wrapped hrick. I wouldn't he surprised. 

HW: Well we used soapstones then. 

I: Where did the electricity come from? 

IR; From the Lighting Company. We didn't call it LILCO 

then. 
f 

I: But you had telephones before you had electricity? Is 

that right? 

HW; I don't know which came first. 

IR; Prohahly ahout the same time, well it was before I went 

to college certainly. 

HW: I know the first one I talked to on the phone was 

Beulah. I rang Beulah up right away as soon as we got our 

phone. My sister . 

I: So you're not sure which came first. 

IR: It seems like the telephone did. 

HW: I think so, but I'm not sure. 

I: Okay, you had the lights. Did they come out of the 

I ceiling? 

I IR: Yeah, I think so. Probably hanging down. 

I: Do you remember the first electrical appliance after the 

lights? 

I HW: I don't remember. 

IR; I would guess toasters, but I don't know. 

HW; In fact, I don't remember my mother having any electrical 

I kitchenware at all, not even a washing machine, or .... 
I 
I I: A vacuum cleaner? 

HW: No. Nor an iron or anything like that. 
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I: How did you iron? 

HW; Why you heated them on the stove, hig heavy things, 

I; Did you have to sprinkle water on the clothes? 

IR; Well, yes, do yet too, 

HW; I like to have it lay awhile and get all evenly damp, 

you know, 

I; Your waffle iron ,,,? 

IR; I don't think we made waffles. We made plenty of 

pancakes with the grill heated on the stove, 

HW: They were good too, 

IR: Sure they were. You might carry over some of the stuff 

from your grill cakes and then use them again, sort of as 

€1 # # • # 

I: The hatter? 

IR; Yeah. Use it again as starter, (Unclear) leavening 

I; Did most everybody make their own hread at that time? 

IR: Oh yes, 

HW; And finally, we did get a hread mixer, 

IR: Not the electric one, 

HW: No, 

HW; My (unclear) always said, "Now is the time to mix the 

hread. Mom, before we go to bed. Let me mix it for you," 

He'd mix that thing. 

I; Would you let it sit overnight? 

HW: Yes. 

I: You'd throw it in the oven the next day? 
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IR: Oh no, we didn't throw it in. 

HW: We'd make it up in whatever shape we wanted and size, 

loaves, and put it in greased pans. 

I: What were different kinds of bread in those days? 

HW: Well, I don't know. 

IR: But some, whole wheat, I would say, 

HW: Yes, We made a graham bread, what we would call a 

graham bread, (Unclear) nearly went crazy over it, (Unclear) 

if you've got any graham bread, I've got to have it,' 

I: Now how did you get the oven to the right temperature? 

IR: You can tell after you've used it a few years, 

HW: Well, some of them had a little thing in the front, 

not too many, 

I: Was your kitchen stove a wood stove or a coal stove? 

IR: Wood, And usually you'd have a galvanized water tank, 

which I don't know how many gallons it would hold, but 

with an arrangement so that the water circulated through 

the stove you see. We had a galvanized tank and it went 

up almost to the ceiling. There must have been some way 

of having the water circulate through some part of the stove, 

I: That's how you heated your water? 

IR: Yeah, Of course, for cooking you didn't heat. You 

just did that on top of the stove, 

I: Then you would take hot water out of there for what 

purpose? 

IR: Well, dishwashing, bath, 

I: Bath. Would you have to carry it to the tub? 

IR: Well, I remember we brought the tub for a small child, 

and frankly I don't know what the adults did. But I can 
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remember having a hath in a wooden tnh ahout so high on a 

tahle top, 

I: Up on a tahle top? 

HW; We used to have a galvanized tuh that sat on the floor, 

and you took a hath in. 

IR; Well, this was, I guess, before the galvanized tubs came 

in. I haven't the ghost of an idea of how old I was. 

I; You must have been pretty small to take a bath on the 

kitchen table, 

IR; It was a washtub actually, 

HW; You didn't ever have a real bathtub, shape of a bathtub. 

We did have a tuh just always sat in the kitchen in front 

of the stove where it was warm. 

I: Did the hot water heater have a faucet on it? 

IR; I can't seem to reni«'T>ber. Can you remember? How did 

we get the water out of the tank? 

HW; I can't think how we did. 

I; How often did you take a bath? 

IR; Well, not too often. 

I; Once a week? 

HW: Oh, at least. Yes. 

I: Twice a week. 

IR; Oh, don't pin me down. I just don't know. It was all 

according to what we had been doing, how hot it was, how 

dirty we got, I think we were moderately clean. Our mothers 

both thought we were clean anjrway. They tried to keep us 

clean. 
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I: Did you used to help out with the chores? 

HW: Oh sure. Whip the eggs, feed the chickens, feed the 

horses sometimes and the cows, cut up some carrots for 

the cows, 

IR: Shell the corn sometimes. 

HW: Oh yes, we had an old com sheller. 

I: Com sheller? 

IR; Yeah. To get it off the cohs. 

I; And that's what you fed the chickens? Did you have any 

pigs? 

HW; Oh yes. Sure, And of course in the fall we killed a 

couple of pigs. Oh, you should see all our packing, 

grinding up and doing one thing and another, 

I; Did you have a smokehouse? 

IR; Well, we used one, the neighbor's smokehouse. We had 

pigs. But I don't think we had a smokehouse. 

HW: Oh, I think you probably did. We did, 

IR: You did? We had a root cellar. And I always loved 

that cellar where we raised the little chickens and hatched 

them in incubators. See those little chickens coming out 

of the shell. Oh, was that fun. 

I; What did they use to keep the incubator warm at that 

time? 

HW: Kerosene, My brother's (unclear) burned up one 

night, chickens and all. He had a small one out in the 

orchard. It was new, almost new. Something happened to 

the stove, couldn't do anything to stop it. I felt terrible 

to bum the chickens. 
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I: Did you have your own meat? What did you huy from the 

hutcher? 

IR: In those days, we bought everything from the hutcher. 

HW; (Unclear) pigs hut I can't rememher they're ever 

butchering a cow. But pigs, yes. Sausage? I think they 

may have taken that in and have Reeves make it up. 

HW: He had (unclear) wagon when he came around and he*d 

ring his bell when he'd get to the house so we'd know he 

was there. 

I: Do you recall any prices? 

HW: Prices, I don't know. I think you could probably get 

a whole steak enough for the family for two dollars. 

IR: We didn't have any hamburger. I don't think we very 

often had it ground. Do you think so? 

HW: No. 

I; What about hotdogs? 

IR; Oh no, they came later. 

HW: I think hardly anybody would make them, I mean you 

couldn't buy the cases then. You had to make them. You 

had to clean the guts, you know and put the meat in. They 

put anything they want to in a hotdog, 

I: What kind of meal would you have on a very special 

occasion? 

IR & HW; Chicken! 

IR: Ghick«n or turkey once in a while. Chicken mostly, 

I guess. Roast chicken, 

HW: Chicken and dumplings. 
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I: Did your husband hunt? 

HW: No. 

I: Did you eat seafood fairly often? 

HW; Yes, anything we could get. 

I: Would you go clamming? 

HW: Yes, yes. 

IR: Oh, whenever they were down at the hay and it was 

good weather so they could, (unclear) oysters. The hest 

oysters I have ever eaten were from Mattituck Creek, Now 

the water is so polluted that you can't trust anything. 

The flavor is not there. Don't enjoy it like you used it. 

Interruption, 

I: Do you recall any fires in the area? 

HW: My hushand had to go rushing out to the fires. So 

many hams (*»nclear) that burned. Almost everybody's had 

a bam bum up sometime, 

I: Did you ever go on a ha3rride? 

IR; Yeah, once in a while. Even a sleigh ride, 

HW; Yes, A sleigh ride in a big sled. Not too often. Not 

very often that the snow was right, 

I: How many people would that fit in it? 

HW; Ten or fifteen, I don't know, whatever you could 

push in, 

I: Did most of the hay rides occur in the summer or the 

fall? 

HW: Oh, they were so much fun when Harold Reeve was along 

and George Penny. 

I; Harold Reeve? 
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HW: Oh, he was full of fun. Made us laugh all the time 

I: Would the hay ride last for a couple of hours? 

HW; I don't know. I don't rememher. They prohahly did 

Till we got too cold, I guess. 

End of tape 
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name Irraa Reeve 

"birth date Novemher 1894 place West Mattituck family home 

father Henry James Reeve 

mother Caroline Belle Rohinson (Carrie, to the family) 

childhood Chores — help with dusting, washing - lamp chimneys etc. 
Recreation .— games, toys, swimming, picnics, camping, 

picking berries, sliding on snow, paper dolls, othar dolls, 
reading _ 

education West Mattituck one-room school, Mattituck school 
through second year high school. Two years Riverhead High 
School, Cornell University College of Arts and Sciences, 
B,A. 1916, Phi Beta Kappa, Massachusetts General Hospital 
School of Nursing and Columbia University Teachers College, 
M.A, 1928, 

work _Public Health Nursing administration. New York City 
1920 - 1923. In 1924 in charge of Tuberculosis Clinic at New 
Haven Hospital Dispensary, with teaching of Yale University 
nursing students. In 1930 New Haven "Visiting Nurses Association 
teaching and Associate Director, 1951-1962 Director of Public 
Health Nursing, Columbia County, N.Y, Department of Health, 

activities, projects, hobbies Volunteer activities. Tuberculosis 
and Public Health Association (now Lung Assoc,) and Suffolk 
County Mental Health Association: member of both Boards of 

Directors, Board of Directors and active, Mattituck Free 
Library and Mattituck Historical Society, Officer and active 
North Fork Audubon Society, Member League of Women Voters, 

Travel: Three months in Europe 1927 including visits to 
Schools of Nursing, After retirement, Scandinavian Nature 
Field Trip, 1964, 1963 visit Isle of Jamaica and Florida, 
bird watching, California National Audubon Society trip 1966, 
Bird watcher from way back. 

major turning points in my life college and nursing at 

beginning of World War I. After Master's Degree, the field 
of Public Health Nursing, Retirement with opportunities to 
travel and to work as volunteer with public health group, 

for me Mattituck was Home, Now the opportunity to be closer 

to my younger relatives, 

I'd like Mattituck to become more conscious of health problems, 
their causes and prevention: more interested in environment, 

the beauty of nature and the need for protecting it. 
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Helen Reeve Wells 
name ^ 

birth date Jan. 1895 place West Mattituck 

father's n^^mp John Reeve ^ 

mother's name Hattie 

childhood On a -fa-pTn — p.bm-p.cjcjiiph as olpaniTig lamp nb-irrmpyBj hplp-

in the home, picking berries, For recreation there was 

reading, dolls, later picnics, swimming, 
education 

i'^attituck High School, two years, 

job training, 

work ^ 

official positions 

member of 

special activities, projects, hobbies 

spouse's namp TiPhI T p Wpll.q 

children's names EgteXle 

major turning points.in: 

Mattituck my life my field of interest 

1 1 1 
2 2 2 
3 3 3 
4 4 4 
5 5 5 

/ 
for me, Mattituck was 

Mattituck is ^ 

I'd like Mattituck to become, ^ 

! 
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"Family Life & Gardens" 

I: Tell me where you came from before you came to Mattituck? 

EW: I came from Riverhead to Mattituck. I came from 

Northport to Staten Island to Riverhead to Mattituck. 

I: Why did you move from Northport? 

EW: That is such a long story. 

I: Can you tell me in a couple of words? 

EW: Our father disanneared, and, of course, he was the 

editor and the owner of the paper. He was thrown into 

bankruptcy, and my husband didn't want to work for the 

partner. The partner took over, and he didn't want to work 

for the partner, so we moved to Staten Island, and got work 

there. Through the War the work was scarce, and he couldn't 

really make a living. That's why we wanted to get back on 

the Island. So we came back to Riverhead to the County 

Review...1915... 

I: So you were in Riverhead until 1919? 

EW: Yes. October of 1919, and then we moved down here. 

I: Why did you decide to move to Mattituck? 

EW: Because Hegen and Lee, his bosses, dissolved partnership. 

Mr. Hegen opened un a place here in Mattituck and brought 

my husband with him. Mr. Lee kent the other place there. 

I: What was the place in Mattituck called? 
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EW: It wasn't a naper, it was a printing office. They 

printed hooks and different things. Do you know where 

that Garden Center is there, well, it was right on the side 

of that, just weet of that. It hurned down, that's why 

it isn't there now. It was where the wrecking company was. 

The wrecking company wasn't there when we moved here. 

There wasn't even street lights when we moved here to 

Mattituck. 

I: Tell me where you moved in Mattituck. 

EW: Right here in this house. This is the only house in 

Mattituck 

I; But you rented then... 

EW: We rented the whole thing clear to the corner of Pike 

Street. 

I: Tell us a little hit ahout what you did with the property. 

You were gardening? What kind of crops did you raise, 

vegetables? 

EW: All kinds of vegetables, just about everything. There 

were beans and peas and beets and okra and lettuce and lima beans, 

just practically all vegetables, cabbage. 

I; What did you do with the vegetables? 

EW: Ate 'em. Fed 'em to the family. I don't think we sold 

very much of anything until my husband had the property over 

here, the Wines' and we raised lima beans. And those we 

shipped into New York to market, because you see I canned 

vegetables for the winter, and that took a lot. 

I: How did you can them? 
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EW; Same as anybody else would, glass jars. We had 

practically enough of everything for a winter. We didn't 

raise potatoes, hut all the rest we did, 

I: You had enough for yourself, your hushand, and 

seven children? 

EW; Well no. You see, the time we had seven, we didn't 

have that hig garden. It's too complicated, really, to go 

into, offhand. Because there was twenty years difference 

between my first one and the last one. My first one was in 

college when the last one was born. This house was here 

before my last one was born. This one Mr. Young bought. He 

built it, he bought the land and built it. But then we got 

some ground over here, and planted that. We always raised 

all we could for the family. With a family like we had, we 

didn't have very much to sell. We used it ourselves. The 

surplus we canned for winter, 

I: Did you have any problems with gardening? 

EW; I don't remember any, 

I: Insects or blights or anything? 

EW; We used to have those anhids once in a while, but in 

those days we didn't have the bugs like we do today. 

I: There were not so many bugs? 

EW: Oh no, not back then. Bugs didn't bother us so much. 

Of course, you had flies, but they don't bother a garden 

very much. 

I: Do you have any idea why things are different now with 

the bugs? 
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EV7; No, I don't know. Well, once in awhile, in these last 

twenty years, mayhe, there's heen a year when we had....Now 

one year we had an awful lot of Japenese beetles. Everything 

was covered with them and then other years you only have a 

few. So I don't rememher. I can't tell ,1ust when or how 

long anything like that occurred. I think you can get more 

information from some of the farmers and people like that, 

that have lived here for years. 

I; Well, I'm talking to you as a gardener, and I want to 

know how you use the garden today differently from how you 

used it hack then? 

EW; Well, I don't have much of a vegetable garden anymore, 

I raise a few beans and tomatoes, and sometimes squash. But 

most of it is berries today. Years ago we used to have 

strawberries, but I haven't had any strawberries for three 

years now. I didn't have much ground for them. There's 

a lot to gardening besides iust reaping your produce and 

when a bed gets real old, your young plants should be taken 

up and moved somewhere. And I didn't have the ground with 

.just this back yard to do that and the plants kind of 

peetered out and I didn't buy any more, that's all. They 

just gave out. 

I; What do you do with the raspberries? Do you move the 

raspberries? 

EW; No, but I take one out, now and then, a plant, and put 

a new one in. I can't move them because I only have so much 

land. If I had acres, I could move them from here, over to 
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some other place and plant this with something else, hut I 

don't have that, so I .iust let it he. Then the plant isn't 

doing good or is real old. 'Course with raspberries a 

stalk comes up each year, cane, as they call it, and that 

gives you the berries for the next year. And sometimes 

your root gets this big, and they're not much good when 

they're like that. So I take it out and put a new plant in 

there and then you got better berries for a few years. 

I: Where do you get the new plants? 

EW: Prom these. The roots go through the ground and they 

spring up here and there. 

I; What do you do with the raspberries? 

EW: Sell them. That's all. 

I: Do you sell all of them? 

EW; I sell them all excent a few that we iust use ourselves. 

But I don't use many. 

I; So when you first came to Mattituck did your husband 

help with the vegetables? 

EW: He did most of the garden work. I used to help pick. 

In those days I didn't do any of the hoeing, or anything 

like that, because I had enough to do in the house. I 

helped. 

I: What did you have to do in the house? 

EW: (Laughing) Cook, wash clothes, iron, ordinary 

housework. In those days, housework was different than it 

is today because we had to i^-on nearly everything that was 

washed. Today tVtey have c"'othes that don't require any 

ironing. And we had to heat our iron on a stove, and 

when it was cooled off you put it back and took another 

one. You probably haven't any idea, have you? Today you 
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have material that rentiires very little pressing, some of 

them none. And they have dishwashers and clothes washers. 

In my day I heated the water on the stove and washed in the 

wash tub. 

I: Where did you get the water in the first place? 

EW: Out the hack door, with a chain pump, and then after 

a few years, I don't rememher just the year, we had a pump, 

a hand pump, put in the kitchen. But we had no hot water, 

we didn't have any hot water until somewhere around 1930, 

I don't rememher lust the exact year. 

I; So you had to heat your water. How? 

EW: On the cook stove. We hurned wood and coal, in the 

summertime we humed oil. We had an oil stove. There was 

no gas, no electric. We didn't have electricity in the 

house or anything. Everything's heen done since we have 

heen here. The walls have heen put on since we have heen 

here. They had regular plaster walls, when we came here. 

Now we have hot and cold running water, and a bathroom, and 

electricity, all of which we didn't have for a good many 

years. 

I: Tell me more about washing the clothes. After you heated 

the water,.. 

EW: You washed them in the tub, on the wash board. You 

carried your water outdoors and dumped it, and in the 

summertime we used to wash outdoors a lot. But still your 

water had to be heated on the stove and taken out to the tub. 
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I: How did you wash your clothes with the hot water? 

EW: By hand, on the hoard. I didn't have a washer until 

we got the electricity in and that was ahout 1925. 

I: So you got your first washer after that? 

EW: Then we got a washing machine. 

I: Were you glad to get a washer? 

EW: Oh sure! 

I: Did that save a lot of time? 

EW: It saves you the work. It saves you the work. When 

I got that I only had the hand pump in the kitchen. We 

didn't have running water until a number of years after 

that, I forget just when it was. 

I: So what did you do heside ironing and washing? 

EW: Everything! Cooking, cleaning, everything! 

I: Tell me ahout cooking. 

EW: I made six hig loaves of bread every other day - five 

loaves. 

I: How hig, a pound, two pounds? 

EW: Oh no. Big loaves! Thes^hig loaves of hread every 

other day, and we made all our own cakes and pies and 

everything in those days, 

I: Where did you get the ingredients? 

EW: In the store, 

I: What store? 

EW: I don't rememher, I think it was Roulstons in those 

days that we bought from. 
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I: Where was that? 

EW: Down on Love Lane, 

I: Is that where you got most of your supplies, food and 

cooking things? 

EW: Our grocery stores were there, on Love Lane where the 

Post Office is. Along that stretch we had A&P and Roujston. 

I don't rememher whether there was another one in there or 

not. And then Gildersleeve up at the comer there, where 

the heauty narlor is. That used to he Gildersleeve's General 

Store. We traded there too, a lot. But we didn't have any 

particular store. We bought where we wanted to, that's all. 

I: Tell me some of the preparations you had to do for 

cooking around 1920. You said that you had a large oil 

stove that you cooked on, or a wood stove. 

EW: We had an oil stove with a separate oven that you put 

over your flames. In summer, that's the way we cooked. In 

winter, we had a cook stove, a range, that hurned wood and 

coal, and that has an oven with the stove, and your fire 

hox full of coals, hot coals, heats your oven, 

I: Can you tell me what a tjrpical meal was like in those 

days, a typical lunch, or a tynical dinner? 

EW: We didn't have a typical lunch. I don't rememher, 

whatever we had on the tahle. In those days, most days we 

had our dinner at noon. And it was a regular cooked dinner, 

meat and potatoes and vegetables, the same as anybody else 

would have. Sunuers, we called them. Today they have lunch 

and dinner but in those days we had dinner and sunner and in 
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those days, too, we had a cooked breakfast. They don't 

have that anymore. 

I: Tell me what you usually had for breakfast. 

EW: My husband was a southerner, and we had either hominy 

or cornmeal mush with bacon or ham or, he was a great fish 

eater, especially smoked fish, finnan haddie, all kinds of 

smoked fish in those days. Or we had bacon and eggs with 

our cereal, hominy or cornmeal. 

I: What would be a typical sunner? 

EW: Well, sometimes it was left-overs with fruit and cake 

afterwards, baked beans or maybe sliced ham and potato salad 

or something, but I couldn't tell you. Just anything that 

I could pick up. 

I: Did you have dinner with the whole faraily around one 

table? 

EW: Yes, uh uh. 

I: Did you used to say grace before you ate? 

EW: Well no, not way back in those days we didn't. We do 

today, but in those days we didn't. 

I: What would you say you snent most of your day doing, 

cooking or taking care of children, or washing? 

EW: There was a little of everything, everyday. I did 

washing when you have to do it by hand. Practically 

everyday I had to wash with a big family. Too many clothes 

to wash, you couldn't do them in a day by hand. The 

ironing had to be done at the evening, at night, there 
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wasn't time enough in the day, take care of children'and 

cook and wash your own dishes and everything like that. 

There isn't time, so the ironing was mostly done at night, 

Saturday was the hake day, always a hake day and we made 

pies and cakes besides the hread and everything like that, 

besides trying to keep your house clean with a broom. We 

didn't have vacuum cleaners in those days. You haven't any 

idea what it was to live in those times. You try getting 

up in the morning and cooking and clear away the meals, 

washing the dishes, putting them away, washing your 

children, keep them clean, and wash the clothes. And you 

didn't have very much time to do anything else, 

I: Do you have more time now? 

EW: Well, you have iust so much time, But my time is 

STsent in a different way today. I don't have anyone to 

wait on today. It's only a couple of years my son has 

been with me. I was alone after my husband died a good 

many years. He died in 1958 and my time was spent in 

either painting, or gardening, or cleaning up the yard. For 

years I did my own painting, all the walls and everything, 

my porch, I've always painted that myself. I had to hire a 

man to do the outside. I was a regular handsrman. For 

years I did all the painting. The last couple of times that 

this has been painted, my son did it for me, but up until 

then, UT) until about three years ago, I did all the painting, 

every bit of it, ceilings and all. 

I: Back in the 1920's you didn't have rollers, so you 

had to do it all by brush? 

EW: Yes. 
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I: Would you say the things you did, and the things that 

you learned to do were pretty typical of the average 

housewife in those days? ^ 

EW: Yes, I think so. 'Course people who lived in town 

didn't prohahly have....although most people have a little 

backyard garden anyway. But I think we were typical of the 

average family. 

I: What ahout raising children, tell me a little hit ahout 

that. 

EW: Oh goodness, I don't know how to tell you. 

I; Tell me one, two or three of the most important things 

you tried to teach your children. 

EW: Well, I don't really know .iust how to put it. Of 

course in those days, too, the children, most of them had 

homework, and I always helped them with that. But so far 

as teaching them other things, I tried to teach 'em to help 

and to live as they should live. I don't know how to put it. 

I; If I were your son right now, what would you teach me? 

EW: I don't know, I might put you to work feeding the 

chickens. 

I: Is that what you did with your children, did you assign 

chores to them? 

EW: Oh yes. In those days they had plenty of chores. 

There were ashes to take out from the stove, and wood and 

coal to bring in, and chickens to be fed. I can't say, 

one day I teach them this, and the next day I teach them 

that, because you get up and you go through a day and when 
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there is somethiTig for them to do, you give it to them to 

do. They always had to do those things, like feeding the 

chickens and taking the ashes out and bringing in the wood 

and coal which takes longer to do it than it does to tell 

it. 

I; How did they learn to do it, from you or from their 

older brothers and sisters or their father? 

EW: How did they learn? Prom me, their mother, not from 

their father, he was never home. He went to work early in 

the morning and he wasn't home until suppertime or after 

suppertime. So there was many a night we were all through 

with supper when he would get home. Especially when he 

worked in Riverhead, he was always late getting home at 

night. The bulk of everything fell to me, because they had 

to go to work early in those days. When we were first 

married, he had to be to work at seven o'clock in the 

morning. He had to get up half past five or a quarter to 

six, I guess it was never later than half past five 'cause 

he wanted a cooked breakfast. He was used to it, and he 

wanted it, and to cook it and sit down and eat it and then 

walk to work, it took time. There was no cars and he had to 

be to work at seven o'clock, so you know we had to get up 

early. The children were usually up too to sit down and 

have their breakfast with us. Very, very seldom there might 

be one that would be a little late getting down to 

breakfast. But they would all get un and have breakfast 

with us. 

I: What time did you have supper? 

EW: Around six o'clock. 



Tape 8-EW-l PageJLL3 

I: What time did you usually go to hed? 

EW: Two o'clock in the morning, 

I; Are you serious? 

EW: My ironing had to he done at night, and there was a 

lot of ironing. I had five hoys going to school that wore 

white shirts to school and a necktie. They didn't go to 

school looking like they do today. 

I: Were those the rules then, ahout the tie? Were they 

school rules? 

EW: No. I don't know if they were the school rules, hut 

just everybody's child dressed pretty good in those days. 

Mine wore white shirts. They never had a colored shirt 

while they were growing up to go to school in. My hushand 

wore white shirts, too, up until the last mayhe twenty years 

of his life. But there was always plenty to do. You were 

to clean, to sweep with a hroora, then everything was 

covered with dust. You had to dust everything because 

when you sweep with a broom everyday, everytime you sween 

there's dust. It makes a big difference. We don't have that 

today because you use a vacuum cleaner. It pulls the dirt 

out, hut you don't do that with a broom, you sweep it off. 

Then when it's house cleaning time you take the carpets out, 

and the rugs, and you clean them outdoors, and then put them 

back again. But in those days there was nothing but a broom 

to clean with. It was altogether different than it is today, 

and unless peonle have lived like that, they don't know 

anything about it. They have all that today, and they don't 

realize they don't know how to wash dishes today. This 

generation isn't going to know how to do anything, because 
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you can go buy all your meals cooked for you, and all you 

gotta do is stick 'em in the oven, 

I: What do you think we should do? What do you think people 

should do? 

EW: (Laughing) I don't know what people should do, hut I 

think their children should he taught a lot more. Teach 

them how to cook. They can't do the simplest thing today. 

I was only eleven years old when I learned how to make hread. 

I: What else would you teach your children today? 

EW: Well, as I say, everything. Cooking, making beds, 

washing dishes, scrubbing floors, washing windows, everything. 

Everything in combination with housework and my boys, 

everyone but the last one, cooked. The boy that's out back 

there now, he's made many a pie and biscuit and everything. 

The youngest one went into the Air Force soon as he was out 

of high school, and didn't do much cooking. I guess 

ordinary cooking, like cooking meat and potatoes, he could 

do now, but I don't think he learned how to do any baking; 

but all the rest of mine learned how to bake. Did most 

anything. 

I; Tell me why you think that's important. 

EW; The home should be the central attraction. And 

children should leam how to run a home. They should learn 

the cooking and the taking care and the buying of things, and 

everything else. I had a neighbor, and her husband couldn't 

even make himself a cup of coffee. If that isn't the most 

ridiculous thing I ever heard of. He wouldn't try to cook 

anything. It was in our family though, our father, in his 



ycunger days was a cook on a "boat and he was a pretty good 

cook. He was a printer, yes, hut when he was younger, I 

guess in his late teens or mayhe early twenties, he was 

cook on a hoat. And my husband's father could cook a meal. 

They liked to. And my hushand too. He never tried to 

hake anything, hut he could cook meat and vegetables and 

things like that. So cooking kind of run in the family. 

They didn't any of them find it hard to help me with 

cooking and all. 

I; So you think that it's important for children to help 

their parents? 

EW: Oh yes, I think they ought to help in anyway that they 

need it. They should learn how to do things, help get 

meals and clear them away. Now they have dishwashers, 

they don't need to know how but they should know how. But 

there's something more to dishwashing than what a lot of 

peonle think. 

I: Did you have any problem with discipline with your 

children? 

EW: Very little, because from the time that they were this 

high they were taught to obey and mine all came home from 

school, unless there was a ball game or something like that. 

I never allowed mine to go down and hang around the streets, 

things like that. Discipline is very important. They 

could all bring their friends here. I had very little 

trouble with any of them. 

I: How did you teach them discipline? How did you teach 

them to obey? 
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EW: (Laughing) Well, they knew when I spoke, I meant it. 

But they got a stick on them if they didn't mind. They got 

punished. I never was anyone to fool around with any coaxing 

and so forth. When I told them to do something, they did 

it and if you start young enough they form a hahit, you 

don't have to he fierce with them. They know whether you 

mean it or not and when they're told to do something, they 

do it. If you start young enough it isn't an awful "to 

make children ohey. It's when you allow them 'til they are 

five, six, seven mayhe, to do pretty near as they please, then 

they don't want to and they talk hack to you, and that I 

never would take. Parents should he parents, there's a lot 

of responsibility on their shoulders. But if children are 

taught when they're real young that they have to do as you 

want them to, you don't have an awful lot of trouble. Oh, 

sometimes there's something, but never had anything serious 

to put up with, never, with any of them. 

I: Did you take care of the discipline? Or did your 

husband? 

EW; My husband very seldom was around enough to discipline 

any of them. 

I: Would you say that was pretty typical, too, in those 

days the mother had to take care of the discipline? 

EW: I think, as a riile, a mother has more responsibility 

than the father does because the father is away from home so 

much. Still of course they have their share, but I think 

it's mostly up to the mother, because the mother has them 

all day. 
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I: As your children grew np, did they help you with the 

younger children? 

EW: Well, mine were so spread out that there wasn't too 

much taking care of any of them. The first two were quite 

close together; I guess sometimes they had to helt> look 

after the others, out in the yard, or something. I don't 

rememher. You see, I never went and left my children either. 

I; You were al'vays at hone with them? 

EW: I was always home. I never went out and left my 

children hy themselves, never. 

I; Did the whole family ever go out together, for a 

picnic or ...? 

EW: Well, we used to go on picnics and things like that, 

hut there wasn't any place, really, to go in those days. 

You went to school and you went to church. There might he 

a hallgame or the movie, hut that's all. Sometimes I would 

take the oldest ones and go to the movie, and the father 

would he home with them. I never had a hahysitter in my 

life, never for any of them. 

I: Do you think it was had to have a hahysitter? 

EW: No, hut in those days, I don't think people did have 

them. I guess most mothers stayed home with the children, 

or they didn't look after them at all. Some people let their 

children run and do as they like. They did in those days 

too. I don't know whether anyone hired a hahysitter. I 

•never did. There was too much to do, anyway, to go out. 
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I: Did you ever go to Library Hall? 

EW: Yes, I went to Library Hall when they used to have 

movies there, A good many years they had movies. 

I: Did you ever go there for dances? 

EW: I never went to a dance in my life. 

I: Why? 

EW: I just didn't. I wasn't brought up to dance, and we 

didn't go to anything like that. Once in awhile we went to 

a movie. They used to have vaudevilles come around once in 

awhile way back, but there wasn't any nlace to go. But we 

had our fun, nicnics, something like that, a gathering at 

the house. 

I: Did you have visitors come to the house? 

EW: Neighbors? 

I: Yes. 

EW: Well, years ago when we first came here, our neighbors 

were quite neighborly, but that kind of fell off. People 

are not neighborly today. 

I: Tell me why, 

EW: I don't know, I sun-oose just like anything else, changes. 

And you don't know how nor why. But they're not neighborly 

today. The peonle that used to live next door here, they 

moved out just a few weeks ago, she was very neighborly, 

Donald Gildersleeve and his wife, they were very 

neighborly, 

I: Who were your first neighbors? 

EW: His name was James, Mr, and Mrs, James Young. I don't 

know what her name was, other than Mrs. Young. But of course 
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all my neighbors the first ten or fifteen years that I 

lived here, mayhe twenty years, they're all dead and gone. 

We had nice neighbors across the track. They're gone, 

Mr, and Mrs, Theodore Bond, And the Kirkuns that lived 

arotind on Pike Street, They were very good neighbors. But 

I don't know, things changed. We wouldn't know we had any 

neighbors if we didn't go out on the street and see 'em 

once in awhile, 

I; What happened? 

EW: I don't know what happened. People just don't call like 

they used to. People used to run in and sit and talk with 

you for fifteen, twenty minutes, but they don't do it today, 

I don't know why, I guess they're too busy going here and 

there. They have cars today, they jump in them and they go 

and in those days we didn't have any place to go, I 

don't know why things change the way they do, but ,,,, 

I: Would you say that change happened when people 

started using cars? 

EW: I don't know whether the car has much to do with it 

or not, I think it does. People don't seem to have time. 

And then with all the new gadgets they have, so that 

housework is easier, and they haven't time for other things. 

I: Would you say that that changed kind of gradually? 

EW: Yes, I think it comes gradually. You don't notice it 

until it's .... 

I: When did you first notice it? 

EW; I can't tell you. I guess after my old-time neighbors 

were gone. 
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I: Was that around the fifties or sixties? 

EW: The Barkers and the Kirkups and the Bonds. New people 

moved in and they're not so friendly. None of the old-

timers are here, all the G-ildersleeves that were down here 

are gone, the whole family. There were several families of 

them, hut they're all gone. You really don't notice it 
/ 

until it's upon you. It's so all over, I don't know, mayhe 

it's because we have so many different kinds of people, 

too, today. Different nationalities. I imagine it's 

kind of hard for, take for instance, the Polish or Germans, 

or anything, especially if they don't speak good English to 

mingle with their neighbors, you know. I don't know why 

it's the way it is, they'll speak to you on the street and 

all, they're friendly in that way, but they don't come in 

your house, and sit down and chat for a little while. People 

used to do that. In ray raother's time, and in our early 

marriage, probably up until the thirties people were very 

friendly around here. 

I: Did you do that too, stop at people's houses and visit 

for awhile? 

EW: Yes, I did. 'Course I didn't go as much as I would like 

to because I had too much of a family to take care of at that 

time. I used to call; I had several good friends that I used 

to call upon, up the road and around the comer. They're 

all gone now. I'm the last one. 

I; Do you have any young friends? 
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EW: Well, I have a lot of acquaintances, and I suppose, 

in a way, you can call them friends, hut no pals; I have 

no pal at all. The nearest to pals, is in the Church. 

We have a group in the Church that meets, exceut for 

summer, every week, I don't always get there every week, 

hut I do go nuite a lot and that way I get recreation, you 

know, and friendly,,,! used to have, years ago,...he auite 

chummy with some peoule, hut as I say, they're all gone. 

I think mayhe it's hard for young people to go call on 

older people. I think it's hard for young people to get 

to he real friendly with somebody as old as I am. 

I: How come? 

EW: (Laughing). I don't know how come, hut I think they 

prefer young people to he with, 

I: When you were young, in your twenties and thirties, did 

you have older friends? 

EW: I was only in my thirties when I first came here. I 

had several very dear older friends. There were the Barkers, 

over here, and Mrs. Kirkun that lived next door to her. And 

one in particular, a Mrs. Wells—we called her Auntie— 

Auntie Wells, and my children called her Auntie Wells. But 

she was very much older than I was. I used to call on her 

a lot. But I think, as a rule, young people like younger 

friends. I don't know, mayhe they don't, hut that's my 

opinion. 

I: What was Mrs. Wells first name? 
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EW; Her first name was Addie, A-d-d-i-e, I don't know 

what her htishand's first name was. They lived two houses 

up the road. 

I; You got to he good friends with her? 

EW: Oh yes, yes, very good. 

I; How much older than you was she? 

EW: She was thirty-some years older than I was. She was an 

old lady in those days when I lived here. She might have 

heen in her early seventies at that time, Mrs. Kirkup 

was older, too. She called on me very early, after I moved 

here. She was my first caller. She was quite a hit older 

than I am, twenty or thirty years. 

I: Did Addie Wells used to invite you over, or did you 

iust drou in on her? 

EW; I could dron in on her, yes. We did that in those 

days. They didn't mind. Now you have to call someone up 

on the phone to see if it's all right for you to come, or 

something like that. 

I; Did you like it better the old way? 

EW: Yes. You don't need somebody to come in and stay 

hours, but it is nice for people to come in and just chat 

with you for awhile. Just to he neighborly, that's all. 

I: Do you know any young people in town that you like? 

EW: I don't have any of them come here, no. 

I: Nobody stons in to say "Hello"? 

EW: If I'm in the yard, yes, they'll stop, but if I'm in 

the house, they don't come in. 

I: Did you tell anybody that they would be welcome to come 

in for a few minutes? 



Tape 8-.EW-1 Pagei23 

EW: Not especially, I have no way to do it, I'm always 

giving people invitations to come in when I'm on the street 

talking to them and all, hut I don't know. Everybody has 

their own affairs today, 

I: Tell me a little hit ahout your health. You look healthy, 

EW: My health has heen very good, 

I: How did you manage to keep yourself so healthy? 

EW: (Laughing), Worked hard, I guess. Well, I do think 

that the more you move around,the better you are. But I 

don't know what to attribute my good health to. The Good 

Lord, I guess. He showered His grace on me. 

I: Anything else besides that? 

EW: There isn't much to tell about this faraily, because 

the children grew up and got married, left home the 

same as most people do. We stayed behind. And now they're 

scattered all over. 

I: You went to visit some relatives. This last time you 

were gone for several months? 
EW: The last time I went visiting to Mobile, Alabama. I 

have a son there. He had lived in Oklahoma and his company 

opened up a new plant in Mobile, and sent him down there. 

Now they have closed that plant up, and he is back in 

Oklahoma and while he was in Oklahoma, I had visited him 

several times and my daughter is in Phoenix, Arizona. I 

have been out there several times. And her oldest daughter 

lives up in Oregon, and I've been up there twice now, I 
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went there last winter. I have two sons in Tennesee, and 

I stoTj-oed and visited with one, hnt I didn't visit with the 

other one this time. 

I: It seems to he a lot different from the older days 

when the families used to stick pretty close, 

EW; Yes, you know most families settled near hy. Your 

children, they got married and settled in the village or 

near hy. But today they just go off here and there. My 

sister's family's the same. Her grandchildren, her son and 

her daughter, she only has the two, live near enough. She 

lives with her daughter. They live near enough so they can 

see them real often. Her daughter's children are getting 

scattered. One of her children has gone to Maine, and one 

to Vermont. But today, the young peonle around here, when 

they get out of school, and as a rule, most of them go to 

college. And that seems to settle things. Then they don't 

come hack to the village to make a living. They couldn't, 

prohahly, with what they take ut>; they would have to go 

somewhere else. 

I: How do you feel ahout that? 

EW; How do I feel ahout it? It's all right. I never 

tried to stou mine from doing whatever they wanted to do, hut 

I don't like it much. 

I; Do you think it would he better for the town, if the 

younger generation stayed around? 

EW; No, maybe, sometimes maybe it's a good thing to go into 

a strange town to get your .iob. 



Tape 8-EW-l 
Page»225 

I: Why? 

EW: Well, I think, sometimes you do better with a stranger 

than you would do with people you know, not always, hut 

sometimes. There's exceptions to all rules. Sometimes 

people in business will take their children in with them. 

They get along alright but it's nothing you can control. 

They do what they want to, and you must expect them to. 

You can't keep them tied to home, you know. But I would 

like to have them a little nearer. It's a long way to go 

to see them. Of course, we have the telephone. You can 

talk, now and then with them. 

I: Do you write much? 

EW: Quite a bit, yes. Correspond with the family? Oh 

yes, a lot. 

I: Did you do a lot of corresponding back when you were 

younger, with your parents? 

EW: Since we have been away we have always corresponded 

frenuently. 

I: With your parents? 

EW: Several years after I was married they lived close by. 

I always corresponded with any of the family that was far 

away. 

I: I wonder if you have experienced any kind of tension 

between the religious groups in town? 

EW: I wouldn't know whet'^'^^there is or not. 

I: What about visitors, or people from outside coming 

into Mattituck? Do you feel there's a division between the 

native people and the outsiders? There are people like you 
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who come from Northport and Riverhead, and peonle who come 

from New York City—summer neonle. 

EW; I don't know, I don't think so. I really don't think 

so. 

I; It seems to me that you're really a member of this town. 

EW; Yes. Personally I like Mattituck very much. I like a 

small town. You know when we came here we knew practically 

every person. But we have a lot of new people in Mattituck 

now, it's different. 'Course there are some people, too, 

that are into everything and I'cn not. I've never heen a 

hand to belong to this and belong to that and in some ways 

that's a hindrance, and in some ways it's a good thing. But 

exce-ot for the Church, I don't have a chance to meet other 

peonle. For the nast ten years or so, we have had a lot of 

newcomers. 

I; How do you feel about it? 

EW: It's all right...I came in from outside, too, years ago. 

I: I feel that you were welcome back then. But people that 

come in now don't seem to have that kind of welcome. There 

isn't that sense of neighborliness that you were talking 

about. If a new person moves in a couple of doors down 

from you, very likely the people who live here wouldn't go 

to their house and visit them, say hello, meet them and so 

forth. They would leave them alone, right? 

EW: That's true, yes. 

I; When you came here, things were different, neighbors came 
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to call on you and all. People don't know each other, 

they don't learn to know each other, 

EW: Still, if anybody moved next door to me, I would make 

it a point to get acquainted with them...I think as 

neighbors you should. It might make a difference, if it 

were some people, but I don't think it would. I think I'd 

treat any neighbor the same way. 'Course, I knew these 

people before they moved here, these last people. Brigham, 

Timothy Brigham who lives there now and Donald of course. 

We lived here when Donald bought that house, and moved in 

there, but we had known Donald for twenty years. He was no 

newcomer, and these people, we have known Timothy since he 

was a child. But if it was a stranger, I would make it a 

point to speak to them and make myself known to them. I 

think people should do that. It's different in the City, so 

many foreigners, you know, different nationalities and 

sometimes the language is a barrier if they can't speak 

English. But out here we don't have that trouble. 

I: I heard that you tamed a squirrel. Tell me about that. 

EW: (Laughing) I don't know if there is anything to tell. 

Just that the souirrels first came here as little babies, on 

our back porch and I went to the door, and there were three 

of them. So we fed them. I guess when I found the three 

there wasn't anyone with me. And the next day...each day 

there was one more souirrel until there were five of them. 

We fed them. And a couple of them got very tame, especially 

one and that one would come right in the house and go upstairs -
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we had mits upstairs - and help himself. He was very 

cute. But he got hit hy a car, I think. We have a couple 

now. One of them is quite tame hut not like the other one. 

I: Did he have a name? 

EW: Herman...Arthur named him, I don't know where he ever 

got the name. He would get on his la-o. When I would hang 

UT> clothes, he would iumti right on me, he was that tame. 

You would have hard work, sometimes, to get in the house 

without letting him in. So two or three of them got hit hy 

a car out here. But Herman, he was almost human, he was so 

cute. 

I: Do you have any other animals? 

EW: No, I used to go away to Florida in the winter-time, 

five years I went, and I had a beautiful cat, and 

Donald Gildersleeve used to take care of him for me. The 

last year I went away, they didn't want to take care of him, 

and I couldn't afford the hoarding down at the Vets. I 

couldn't find anyone to take him. So I had him done away 

with. So I don't have anymore because it hinders me if I 

want to go away, especially the winter. I have the couple 

of souirrels that come around. 

I: Tell me one more thing. Why did you decide to stay in 

Mattituck? 

EW: One reason I have never gone to a town where my 

children have moved is because I might get there and get 

settled, and they might take a notion to pick up and go 

somewhere else, which they have a right to do. Then I'd he 

lust as had off. And I like my little house, it's old, hut 
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I like it. It's "been "home for so many years. And I'm 

acntiainted still with, a good many people and through the 

church I do meet new people. 

End of tape. 
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(EDITOR'S NOTE: Mattituck's Eva 
Woodward, 96, is well known locally for 
tlie vegetables and berries grown in her 
large summer garden. The mother of 
seven, Mrs. ' Woodward had 38 
grandchildren and '*48 great­
grandchildren at last count. She was 
interviewed by staff writer Maria 
Parson.) 

I was,bom in Northport on January 12, 
1887.1 was 96 last January.' ^ 

My father was the owner and publisher 
of The Northport Journal. After I left 
school, 1 worked in my father's office 
running the presses and setting type. We 
had to set each letter by hand, line for 
line. I met my husband there. He was a 
printer. . > , . 

My husband and I were married in 1906 
and we moved to Mattituck in 1919. This 
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is the only house I vp ever jived m m 
Mattituck^and it was already 100 years 
old When we got here. My husband 
worked at the Riverbed Review. When 

-we moved here we didn't even have a 
hand j lpUmp Mn 'the IdkUchen. No 
improvements, m those days you washed 
and ironed by hand. We heatwbur irons 
'on 
^fore we got electricity.^e pumped 
watCT outside, brou^t it in arid washed 
clothes on a board in the tub. If you don't 
think that's hard work, you should try it. 
. We l^ad seven children,, all born at 

home, teverybody had babies at home in 
those days. They weren't forced to go to 
the hospital like they are now. When my 
first one was bom, I had an aimt, and she 
was a midwife and could deliver a baby 
as good as any doctor. 'Course, if there 
was an emergency, your doctor would 
come to the house. NoWi they won't 
come, no matter wliat's the matter. 

White Shirts, Every Day 
There was so much to do when I was 

raising my family that in the evening I 
didn't get to bed until way after 
midnight. The ironing was tremendous. 
And my bojrs, they had a name here in 
Mattituck. They all wore white shirts to 
school everyday. So the ironing was very 
heavy and besides that I baked five 
loaves of bread every other day. 

I don't believe in women working 
outside the home imless they have to. 
'Course, sometimes they have to, but I 
think that parents today have changed 
more than children. They're not parents 
anymore - some of them, anyway. Now, 
with all I had to do, I took the time after 
supper with my children to read them 
stories. With the older ones we played 
games - card games and monopoly. 
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Mrs. Eva Woodward 
. . . practically everyday I had to wash . . . it was a big family . . . 

.There were too many clothes to wash, you couldn't do them in a day by 
hand. You had to take care of children, cook, and wash your bvm dishes 
. . • there wasn't time, so the ironing was mostly done at night. Saturday 
was the bake day—always . . : We made pies and cakes besides the bread. 
Plus you had to keep your house clean with a broom—we didn't have 
vacuum cleaners in those days. You don't have any idea what it was to 
live in those times. You'd try getting up in the morning and cooking and 
clearing away meals, washing the dishes, putting them away, washing the 
children, and keeping them clean, and washing the clothes, and you didn't 
have very much time to do anything else. ... And the children had home­
work, and I always helped them with that. .. but as far as teaching them 
other things, I  tried to help . . .  

. . .  I  c a n ' t  s a y ,  o n e  d a y  I  t a u g h t  t h e m  t h i s ,  a n d  t h e  n e x t  d a y  I  
taught them that; because you get up and go through a day and, when 
there is something for them to do, you give it to them to do. They always 
had to do those things, like feeding the chickens and taking the ashes 
out and bringing to wood and coal in . . . 

. . .  t h e y  k n e w  w h e n  I  s p o k e ,  I  m e a n t  i t .  T h e y  g o t  a  s t i c k  o n  t h e m  i f  
they didn't mind. They got punished. I was never one to fool around with 
any coaxing and so forth. When I told them to dp something, they did it. 
If you start when they're young they form a habit, you don't have to be 
fierce with them; they know whether or not you mean it. 

Eva Woodward 
Pike Street 
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Contents of Tape No. 30-RWT-6 Date of Interview: 3/10/78 

Oral Author: Ralph W. Tuthill Interviewer: John Traversa 

Pike Street and Love Lane 

This tape seems to have been made as the Author and Inter­

viewer walked along Pike Street beginning near the station, 

down to Love Lane and then down Love Lane to the Main Road. 

There were frequertt interruptions in the taping. 

I: It seems that the town, the businesses, clustered here on 

Pike Street are close to the train stop. 

A: Originally the town was going to be further east, but when 

the railroad came through here, this was the logical place to 

have a station. 

I: Further east? 

A: A mile further east on the Main Road, down near the Histor­

ical Society. 

I: Why would it be down there? 

A: Well, there was two stores down there, a grocery store and 

a candy store and what not, and they figured that that was go­

ing to be it. But then in forty-four (1^44) when the train came 

through, why the train didn't go there. It went by up here and 
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they started to build up here. The railroad was a big 

help to the economy, and service for everything, people 

getting around and going to Riverhead cheaper. New York 

cheaper. 

I: Before the railroad, what was there, a stage coach? 

A: Yes. 

I: Did the railroad stop here because of the Creek? There 

was the harbor here and a little movement around the CreeK? 

A: Oh yes. They came across the Sound and landed some stuff 

here, produce probably and vice-versa. 

I: These warehouses here (since burned down, 1984), these 

have been here quite awhile. This red one, it used to be 

Rambo's righ't? 

A: Right. Right about across from the station (across the 

tracks) Rambo had a feed store, which is now grain and pota­

toes, and a little to the west of that was the first hardware 

store in town. Eventually it turned into a potato house. 

They'd take the potatoes and grade them. Then there was just 

to the east of that a little building where,Duryee used to 

grade corn, and he'd take corn and ship it upstate. For two 

or three years they had an acreage of corn around here that 

they called Luce's Favorite, for upstate ensilage (silage). 

It seemed to be the proper kind of corn, so we'd ship carloads 

of it upstate. It didn't last too long. 
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d's-eye View of Mattituck, Showing the Station in the Centre and Lupton Hall and Library 
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I: Why? 

A: Well, they got a better corn, and they shifted away from 

the Luce's Favorite. 

I: What about the train traffic in the early 1900's? 

A: Well there was probably six or eight trains daily, four 

east and four west. Of course they had big freight trains. 

All the seed and the fertilizer came out by freight car. The 

farmers had to come to the freight cars and cart it with their 

trucks and teams, which made a lot of business, of course. 

There was quite a lot of young people working up in Riverhead 

at the county offices at the time. They took the train up 

there. There'd probably be fifteen or twenty people up here 

first thing in the morning, take the first train up, and then 

they would come home that night. Of course, that's changed now 

entirely. 

I: Why did the train traffic die down? 

A: Well the primary cause is because of the automobile. They 

start right from home in the automobile, and go right to the 

County Center, whereas here they would have to bring up the car 

a mile or two and leave it here right near the station probably. 

Or someone in the family brought them up, and then they'd have 

to pick them up at night. Which is not as convenient as having 

your own car and go right to the office. And it changed the 

picture completely. 

I: It seems that trucks made a big difference too. 
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A: Well fifty years ago they used to bring up the sprouts right 

to the station for the first train, probably a hundred crates of 

sprouts. And they went all over the state more or less, and 

there's no refrigeration. Then the trucks came in and had 

refrigeration and took over. They would pick them right up at 

the door. It made it much nicer and easier and safer. The 

stuff arrived at their destination with refrigeration a lot bet­

ter. 

I; Speaking of farmers loading their crops, particularly pota­

toes, I noticed that farmers have their own warehouses on the 

farm. 
« 

A: Yes, a few farmers, not too many. Of course the outlay for 

graders and so forth is quite expensive. Farmers that raise a 

couple of hundred acres of potatoes, they will have their own 

graders, and loading trucks and ship themselves direct. But it's 

not too much that way. 

I: Do the farmers hold on to the potatoes until the price is 

good? 

A: Well usually with a big acreage, if they should force them on 

the market during September and October, they'd glut th.e market. 

So in order to relieve that they'll store and piece it out. Then 

they cart in winter and get more of a uniform flow of potatoes 

to the market. Because if they did cart them all in a couple of 

months they would flood the market, and the price would be ruin­

ous for them. It makes it much better to store potatoes. And 
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sometimes they'll make a lot of money and sometimes they'll 

just break even. But it does make for uniform flow of potatoes 

to market. 

(Tape Interruption) 

I: I know the Library Hall used to be right where the parking 

lot is now. 

A: Yes, it was built in 1905. They had a big dance hall. They 

also played basketball there. There was a drug store in there, 

and the doctors had offices in there, and the second Library 

in Mattituck was there. And the Bank was there that started 

about the same year. One teller, Ernest Corwin, he used to ride 

a bicycle up from Peconic, On rainy days he came on a train, 

which he lived right near the train station, but good weather 

he rode a bicycle. I used to see him ^ot of times. 

I: Did many people use bikes back then? 

A: Well, of course, children all came to school on bikes. And 

the older people usually they'd drive a horse and buggy. But they 

had bicycles, sure, and all the children a bike. There was no 

transportation to school except by bike or walk. 

I: Next to Library Hall there was a luncheon place, like a bakery 

and sort of lunch room? 

A: About where the Coffee Pot is. That was right to the east of 

Library Hall. 

I: And there was a Abraham and Strauss store here? 

A; Yes, wholesalers. (Wholesalers? Other people report going 

there to send orders for goods. Ed.) 

5  



I: And that burned down? 

A: Well, there was a plumbing shop right where Phillips Depart­

ment Store is, and that burned down around 1907. (Phillips was 

the first store west of the Bank. Ed.) 

I: And was that Con Grabie's? 

A: No, that was Wood Wickham's. And, of course, where the Bank 

is now on the corner, that's where the Post Office was for years. 

For a while it moved just a little bit south on the same side, 

north of Riley's Livery Stable, and then it did move over on 

the east side of Love Lane where it is now. But there used to 

be a tailor shop rj.ght in there on the west side of Love Lane. 

I: Do you remember who the tailor was? 

A: Well, also there was a tailor in that building on the corner. 

I: The Ocbagon House? 

A: Yes, there was a tailor in there for years, Walgo was his 

name, several sons around Mattituck now. He was there for proba­

bly thirty years. The other fellow didn't last too long. East 

of the hardware store now, there was horse sheds, probably twen­

ty sheds, George Fischer owned 'em and local people rented 'em 

by the year. Lots of farmers in the afternoon would drive to 

town and they would put the horses in a shed. Then they would 

do the shopping. Of course, in place of clothing stores most of 

them sent to Sears & Roebuck or Mongomery Ward for their clothes 

pretty much. Except to Riverhead there were no clothing stores 

in here to speak of at all. So when they came up, they put their 

horses in the shed there, and at night if they came up, well they 
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also had the same sheds. Which took the place of parking lots 

for automobiles. 

I: Is there any part of that left? 

A: No, that's where the shoe store is now, the repair shop. 

No, nothing left. Right where we are now (alongside the rail­

road, Ed.) was the first drug store in Mattituck, right about 

where that tree is. On this side is where J.R. Reeves grocery 

store was (north west corner of Pike and Love Lane). And on 

this side where that tree is, was the druggist., run by Hubert 

Klein right near the tracks. The drug store was a small build­

ing on this side of the grocery store. 

I; Then on the corner of Love and Pike (northeast corner) was 

the Gildersleeve store. 

A: Yes. He sold everything; clothing, groceries, shoes, candy, 

molasses, vinegar. Had a coffee grinder and he had a barrel in 

the back side where you drew your molasses for a jug. And he had 

an upstairs where you go up and all the clothes, shoes, boots, 

overalls, ladies materials for dresses. He was practically a 

complete outfit then. 

I: But they went out of business. 

A: The only thing they didn't realize is that in ten or fifteen 

years an antique store like that would be worth a million dollars, 

with all those things in it. But at that time one of the Gilder­

sleeve boys wanted to take over, but he\couldn't swing it with 

the money, so they just had to tear it down. Now a store like 
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that, with antiques and the store itself would be a valuable 

asset to the town. 

I:. By antiques you mean furniture they had in the store, the 

counters and the icebox? 

A: The old pot belly stove, you know, and they also had a 

candy counter in there. The school kids came in and bought 

the school supplies, tablets, pencils. 

I: And that house just to the east, the Fischer house? 

A: Yes, and next to it, that's Charlie Gildersleeve. He used 

to be the station agent. He lived there. And it's where his 

grandnephew, Jimmy. Gildersleeve lives now. Charlie Gildersleeve 

was a station agent for about forty years over there. He never 

got married, -but he was a valuable man in town. He was inter­

ested in everything. 

I: The Gildersleeve house? 

A: It was right north of the store. It was almost next to 

the store, and in between the store and the house, they had 

an old fashioned pitcher pump where I used to go get a drink 

at lunch time. A lot of people used it. In the Gildersleeve 

store they also sold milk at the time. There was no deliveries, 

and they probably sold twenty-five quarts of milk a day. It 

was brought to them by Nat Tuthill. He had a few cows and they 

kept it in the store there. 

I; When you had a dairy farm, did you sell any milk in town? 

A: No, it was all wholesale. I had a dealer's license. I 
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didn't have a retail license. I sold to Mather Dairy. He's 

passed away. Then it was Parkin's Dairy and I don't know 

whose it is now. 

I: Was it in Riverhead? 

A: Well, at that time it was like in my place there. He used 

to pick it up right there, but now I guess it's Riverhead. 

I: What about that white house over there? (east of Love Lane 

and north of the tracks) 

A: That's the Glenwood Hotel -- no not the Glenwood. It's the 

MacMillans. Here comes the lady now. 

I; Would you like to tell us something about your house? 

Mrs. MacM: tlell, I lived here for fifty years. My husband was 

born here, in 1898, so the family has owned it for all those 

years. But I can't tell you when it was built. It was a board­

ing house. 

I: How long has your family owned it? 

Mrs. MacM.: Say 1890, maybe. That's a rough guess. 

I: Is it still a boarding house? 

Mrs. MacM: No. Not since sometime in the late twenties. 

.....(A passer-by began to chat with the Author) 

I: My name's John Traversa. I work for the library. What's 

your name? 

GR: Rau. R-a-u. George Rau. 

I: You've lived in Mattituck a long time? 
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GR: Quite a few years. Oh, permanently for the last fourteen 

years. Security Guard and (unclear) operator in the Post Office. 

Been coming here since 1932. 

I: How did you find out about Mattituck? 

A: He liked the vegetables here. 

GR; And the potatoes. 

I; Why did you come here? Why not Southampton? 

GR: Had to come up before the Judge. 

A: He bought the (unclear) place. You knew him, didn't you 

in the city? 

GR: Yeah. 

I: We're trying to find out why people came to Mattituck. 

GR: Homey atmosphere. 

A: That's it. Good. 

I: What makes it homey? 

GR: The people. I was in the city. Long Island City. Astoria. 

It was alright too. But you come out here, you know, it's a 

different environment. 

I: Did your brother work in the ffank? 

A: Well, my brother, Ray, was a cashier at Cutchogue, and my 

nephew Austin is here now, vice-president. Phillip Tuthill, 

that really started the Bank was a distant cousin of mine, 

(unclear). It's very beneficial, it's been a help to the town. 

It's helped the economy, a lot of people have stock in it, and 
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it's paying dividends in good shape. It expanded and it has 

several smaller Banks around, but this is the headquarters, the 

main Bank, right here in Mattituck. 

I: Beside employing people, how else do you think it's bene­

ficial to have a bank locally? Why not have a bank in Riverhead? 

A: Well, there are a lot of people who wish to borrow money, 

and so forth. The Bank in here and they know them personally, 

whereas if it was ten miles away they wouldn't know them so well. 

And also deposit money. It's handy. 

I: Going South on Love Lane from Pike Street there used to be 

the Post Office where the Bank is now. What was next to the Post 
% 

Office? 

A; A tailor shop. There was also a harness shop there where 

they repaired and mended harnesses. 

I: And then what was next? 

A: Riley had a livery stable. He rented out horses and carriages 

to salesmen. He also would buy a couple of carloads of horses, 

come out here from Iowa in March, and unload them at the station 

and then he would sell to the farmers — regular farm horses, 

heavy horses. And he did quite a good business that way. 

I: What about the Mattituck Variety Shop, next to Barkers there. 

That looks like a pretty old building. 

A: At one time the Post Office was in there. It was a barber 

shop forty years ago. And across the street, the fabric shop. 

It used to be a laundry. It was run by a couple of Chinese people 
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back in 1910. Then for years it was a gas station run by 

Rudy Armbrust -- Tydol, and then it was vacant quite a few 

years. Now it's a fabric shop. 

I: And next where the Love Lane Shop is was Reeve and Hall 

Butcher Shop? And then the L & L Food Market was built in 

the twenties? 

A: Yes. Right between the Love Lane Shop and where the L & L 

Market is now, there was the old blacksmith's shop, run by 

Conrad Grabie for a good many years. In front of that was the 

old bicycle shop that was built later on for his son Walter 

Grabie who eventually built the Mattituck Garage where Hansen's 

Garage is now on the Main Road. Which was the first garage 

around here. 

I: All these buildings here, the Love Lane Shop, the L 4 L 

Market, the old Post Office and so forth, do you know who built 

them? I know it was called Kelsey's Block. 

A: Kelsey owned it, but he didn't build. His son is an assessor 

right now. I don't think he owns anything now, but it was 

local carpenters pretty much. I would say Reeve maybe, Walter 

Robinson. I don't know who else, local people. 

I; What about the building which is now the Garden Shop on the 

Main Road? 

A: The house where the Garden Shop is, this Con Grabie that had 

the blacksmith shop, that was where he lived. 

(unclear) 
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I: Was it ice cream and vegetables? 
;|l 

A: Yes. It was Harry DePetris. 

I: Now tell me where the A & P was. 

A: I think it was right across the street where Harry DePetris 

built a restaurant afterwards. (At the bend, south and east side 

of Route 25) j 

I: What's there now? 1 
' 

A: Well, it's a General Electric sales and services -- Grabie 

Appliances. Where the sporting goods shop is,. Rouiston was in 

there. 

I: The Octagon Building, there was a liquor store in there? 

A: Yep. And before that was where Walgo had the tailor shop. 

I: Did the Oct-CLgon House have that front section originally? | 

A: I think the frontsection has been built on later. Dolly ; 

Bell lived in the above apartment for years and years, she and 

her mother. She was a painter. She did a lot of pictures of I 

Mattituck, different scenic places, the Lakes and the Bay. 

Also in the front office years ago they had a .... sold clams 

and oysters and so forth. Herb Conklin-, he had (unclear) 

oysters and clams for several years. 

I: This is the building that Andrew Gildersleeve, Donald's 

grandfather or great-grandfather built, right? 

A: I guess, yes, that's correct. 

I: I noticed there's Silkworth's Real Estate and Insurance. 

I think that's one of the oldest real estate companies in the 

1 3  



y/V 

town. Did you know the Silkworths? 

A: Yes. I went to school with the four boys. Yes, and the 

sister. His real estate office originally was where Sidor's 

potato house is, across the railroad, this is the second one. 

Where that office is now was a home where Reeve, who ran the 

hot houses, lived. It's been torn down and been gone. 

(Unclear, confused discussion about houses and churches) 

A: (Unclear) They spent the last days there. 

I: Do you have any relatives of yours in this church yard? 

A: Not too much, there's some . . 

I: Was there a Hansen's garage across from the Methodist Church 

on Sound Avenue? 

A: Edward Jones built, that garage, then Hansen took it over 

later on. It was probably a garage for twenty-five years I 

imagine. 

I: What happened to the building? 

A: Well, it's still there,I don't know. It's just houses. 

This Hansen then moved on to the Main Road. 

(Talk about the Presbyterian Churchyard) 

A: Mmmm (unclear) big chestnut tree here. Used to climb it, 

get chestnuts. I went to school there when our school was being 

added on3o in 1910. I went to school in the Presbyterian Church 

for a whole year. 

I: Tell me, if some of these people could come back today, 

people from one hundred or two hundred years ago, tell me how 

1 4  



///5~ 

yeu think they would feel? 

A: They would want to go right back in the ground again. 

I: Why? 

A: Well, maybe I wouldn't say that, they might like it here, 

everything is a lot easier. Working conditions, living condi­

tions, kitchens and so forth, are so much better equipped. 

Maybe they would like it. 

I: Do you think that they would miss the peace and quiet? 

A: Probably would. They'd get used to it. Yes, it's differ­

ent entirely, with the automobiles and everything. The old 

horses didn't make much noise. But they would be amazed. No 

question about that, with the planes flying overhead. They 

just wouldn't know what it was all about. 

I: What do you think would be the biggest surprise or the 

biggest change to them? 

A: Well I imagine almost the automobile"; 

I: Would you include the tractor? 

A: Yes, yes the farming equipment is so different, they would 

never recognize 'em. 

I: I remember you said once that the tractor was probably the 

biggest single factor in changing the farm. 

A; Ah yes. I would say it made so you could work a much larger 

acreage, and it was also easier. It was a lot more fun to ride 

a tractor than it was to walk behind a team of horses. 

I: You say that even though you love horses? 
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A: Yes, I liked horses but I ... well, when you're young 

walking is good for you, probably. 

I: It seems to me that one of the big changes is people, the 

population has changed a^ot. 

A: I started school in 1903. There was one Polish family in 

school, and now when you look at the paper, the athletes and 

so forth, it's hardly any of the original names in school. 

They're all good athletes and a lot of different nationalities. 

They're good farmers and good business men. It's certainly 

changed entirely. I think a lot of younger people ... there's 

a lot more mixing going on, no doubt which is good. 
% 

I: Why? 

A: Well you're more likely to live in harmony ... unless you 

try to separate yourself all the times. Mixing into community 

affairs, you're a lot better that way. 

(Interruption) 

A: Well, the young people can't find work very easily because 

there isn't any industry like in the city. So they have to 

leave. Senior Citizens are a big population out here now and 

they are doing a lot for them. At St. Agnes Church in Greenport 

there are free dinners.* Probably a hundred people go there 

everyday, Senior Citizens. And the young people, as you say, 

the jobs aren't here. But there are a lot more jobs now than 

there used to be. And in the village there is quite a local 

employment, but not enough to take care of the young people 

* 
See next page for note, 
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growing up. 

I: And fewer jobs for young people on the farm. 

A: That's true. With the mechanized farming, there's not a 

need for the year round labor, but there is an influx of migrant 

labor along in July for three, four months for the harvest. 

They leave in the winter time and go to Florida, probably to 

pick oranges. But the young people aren't too much interested 

in farming. It's a lot of hard work and 

Note#* - »«t f» 

*Not free. These are good lunches at a very reasonable price. 

The program is run by the County in the Church Hall. 
# * 

;recently the prices haven't been too good, they don't get paid 

too much. But if they sell their farm, they get a tremendous 

price for it. 

I: Well the population has changed but one thing that hasn't 

changed seems to be politics. It seems for a long time the town 

has been Republican. 

A: Of course, for the last several years, a good many years, 

the Republicans do out-number the Democrats. 

I: So it seems as if there has been a one-party system in effect 

as far back as anyone seems to remember. 

A: Well, you don't want too much of a one-party system. They got 

that in Russia. I would say the foreign element here partially 

is more Democrats but there's a good many of Republicans too. 

I guess all the different people here, they pretty much vote 
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about the way they want to. 

I: I know you went to Russia with a United States Department 

of Agriculture group representing American farmers. Do you 

think that's helped you see Mattituck in a different way from 

someone who's just lived here all his life? 

A: I thought it was very helpful. When I came out of the 

service, I said that young fellows should either go to college 

or go into the service. You see more of the world. Sometimes 

if a person is used to being secluded always in his home town, 

the possiblility of newcomers coming is a little more frightening. 

They tend to be a little more cautious. Whereas, if you've 
% 

been exposed to other people and different beliefs, you don't 

tend to be afraid. I think that TV and radio have helped these 

people that have not been anywhere. They hear about events 

that happen abroad, politically and everyway. 

END OF TAPE. 
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